
  
  

Shelton City Council 
Meeting Agenda 

July 7, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
Shelton Civic Center 

 

 
A.  Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Roll Call 
• Late Changes to the Agenda 

 
B.  Council Reports 
 
C.  General Public Comment (3-minute time limit) 

The City Council invites members of the public to provide comment on any topic at this time. Please sign in on the public comment 
sheet and keep an instruction card.  If you would like to comment on a Business or Action item, please list the agenda item number 
on the list. City Councilmembers and City Staff will not enter into a dialogue during public comment. If the Council feels an issue 
requires follow up, Staff will be directed to respond at an appropriate time. 

 
D.  Consent Agenda (Action) 

1. Voucher number 102393 in the amount of $3,454.95 
2. Vouchers numbered 102394 through 102421 in the amount of $124,224.20 
3. Vouchers numbered 102429 through 102480 in the amount of $97,047.93 
4. Payroll warrants numbered 3877 and 3880 through 5171 through 5217 and 5218 through 5328.  

Warrants 101925 through 101946 in the amount of $753,233.75 
5. Payroll warrants numbered 3881 and 5329 through 5371 and 5372 through 5478.  Warrants 102147 

through 102163 and 102164 through 102166 in the amount of $759,536.00 
6. Payroll warrants numbered 3882 and 5479 through 5523 and 5524 through 5629.  Warrants 102317 

through 102336 in the amount of $763,050.83 
7. Minutes of Regular Business Meeting – January 21, 2020 
8. Minutes of Regular Business Meeting – March 3, 2020 

 
E.  Presentation 
      1.  Residential Owned Communities – Presented by Housing Co-op Development Specialist Miles Nowlin 
      2.  Bullet List of Potential Code Changes – Presented by Community Development Director Mark Ziegler 
 
F.  Business Agenda (Study/No Action/Public Comment Taken) 
      1.  Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 1949-0220 Single Room Occupancy – Presented by Community  
           Development Director Mark Ziegler 
      2.  Resolution No. 1160-0620 Master Fee Schedule Update – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
      3.  Resolution No. 1161-0620 Surplus Vehicles – Presented by Police Chief Darrin Moody 
      4.  Resolution No. 1162-0620 Basin 3 Final Sewer Rehabilitation Final Acceptance – Presented by City     
           Engineer Ken Gill 
      5.  Resolution No. 1163-0620 Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design Contract Amendment No. 1 –  
           Presented by City Engineer Ken Gill 
      6.  Resolution No. 1164-0620 Sewer Comp Plan Contract Amendment No. 1 – Presented by City Engineer  
           Ken Gill  
 
 
 



G.  Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken) 
      1.  Resolution No. 1159-0620 WSDOT 6-Year TIP – Presented by City Engineer Ken Gill       
      2.  MTA Parking Lot Retrofit Project Change Order – Presented by City Engineer Ken Gill 
      3.  Coronavirus Relief Funds for Local Government – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
 
H.  General Public Comment (3-minute time limit)     
 
I.  Administration Reports 
      1.  City Manager Report 
 
J.  Announcement of Next Meeting – July 21, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
K.  Adjourn 

 
The City of Shelton is committed to the non-discriminatory treatment of all persons in employment and the 
delivery of services and resources.  If you require accommodation for your attendance at the City Council 
meeting, please call (360) 432-5103 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 



 

Updated 6/30/20 
 

 
2020 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 
Tues. 7/21 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
• Ordinance No. 1949-0220 Single Room 

Occupancy 
• Resolution No. 1160-0620 Master Fee 

Schedule Update 
• Surplus Vehicles & Equipment 
• Resolution No. 1162-0620 Basin 3 Project Final 

Acceptance 
• Resolution No. 1163-0620 Satellite WWTP 

Reclaimed Water Tank Design Contract 
Amendment No. 1 

• Resolution No. 1164-0620 Sewer Comp Plan 
Contract Amendment No. 1 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 7/10 – 5:00 pm 

Tues. 8/4 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• LEAN Process 

Business Agenda                                                              
• Master Franchise Agreement - Cable 

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 7/24 – 5:00 pm 

Tues. 8/18 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
• Stormwater Rates 

Action Agenda 
• Master Franchise Agreement - Cable 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 8/7 – 5:00 pm 

Tues. 9/1 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 8/21 – 5:00 pm 



 

Updated 6/30/20 
 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
• Ordinance No. 1950-0320 Budget Amendment 

for 2020 
Action Agenda 

• Stormwater Rates 
Administration Report 

•  
Tues. 9/15 
5:50 p.m. 

Regular SMPD 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 9/4 – 5:00 pm 

Tues. 9/15 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
• Ordinance No. 1950-0320 Budget Amendment 

for 2020 
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 9/4 – 5:00 pm 

Tues. 10/6 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 9/25 – 5:00 pm 

Tues. 10/20 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 10/9 – 5:00 pm 

Other – TBD 

• UGA/Annexation Policy (Water/Sewer Extensions) 
• Outside City Water/Sewer Extensions 



 

Updated 6/30/20 
 

• More Standing Committees by the Council  









































































 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
Business Meeting Minutes January 21, 2020 

Shelton Civic Center - 6:00 p.m. 
 

Business Meeting Minutes – January 21, 2020 Page 1 of 2 
 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL PRESENT 
Councilmembers: Personnel:  
Mayor Kevin Dorcy City Manager Jeff Niten 
Deputy Mayor Deidre Peterson City Clerk Donna Nault 
James Boad Administrative Support Assistant Kary Holloway  
Kathy McDowell Admin. Services Director Michelle Sutherland 
Eric Onisko  
Joe Schmit 
Seat #7 – Vacant  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Roll call was taken – All present 
 
LATE CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
City Manager Jeff Niten  
 Remove Agenda Item G-2 until February 4, 2020  

 
COUNCIL REPORTS  
One or more councilmembers attended the following meetings and/or events: 
 Housing & Behavioral Health Advisory Board 
 Criminal Justice Advisory Board 
 Chamber 97th Anniversary & Annual Awards Gala 
 Mason Transit Authority Board 
 OPIOID Stakeholders Task Force 
 Staff briefings 
 Communications with constituents 

 
Councilmember Schmit requested concurrence from City Council to direct staff to move forward 
with coordinating a Joint City Council/Tribal Council Board Meeting with the Squaxin Island 
Tribe of Kamilche Washington. 
 
City Council concurred for staff to move forward with coordinating the meeting. 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
Dean Jewett 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
A motion was made and seconded to approve.  Passed. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 

1. Economic Development Council Update – presented by Executive Director Jennifer 
Baria 



 
 

Business Meeting Minutes – January 21, 2020 Page 2 of 2 
 

2. Shelton-Mason County Chamber of Commerce 4th Quarter LTAC Report – presented by 
Executive Director Heidi McCutcheon 

3. Christmas Town USA & Beauchamp Santa LTAC Report – presented by Rachel 
Hansen, NW Event Organizers, Inc. 

 
BUSINESS AGENDA 
No public comments. 
 

1. Resolution No. 1155-0120 Fee Schedule Update – Presented by City Manager Jeff 
Niten 
 
Staff recommends City Council concur to move Resolution No. 1155-0120 to the 
February 4, 2020 Action Agenda.   
 
City Council concurred to move Resolution No. 1155-0120 to the February 4, 2020 
Action Agenda. 

 
ACTION AGENDA 
No public comments. 
 

1. Mason Transit Authority Parking Lot Retrofit Project Award & Contract – presented by 
City Manager Jeff Niten.   
 
A motion was made and seconded to award the Parking Lot Retrofit Contract to 
RW Scott Construction, Inc.  Passed.   
 

ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 
City Manager – Jeff Niten 
 Winter Snow Response 
 Vactor Truck Training 
 Application process for Council Seat #7 is open and on the City’s website.  Interviews 

scheduled for a Special Meeting on February 11th. 
 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
No discussion items. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
February 4, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
ADJOURN 
As there was no further business the meeting was adjourned at 7:06 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor       City Clerk 



 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
Business Meeting Minutes March 3, 2020 

Shelton Civic Center - 6:00 p.m. 
 

Business Meeting Minutes – March 3, 2020 Page 1 of 2 
 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL PRESENT 
Councilmembers: Personnel:  
Mayor Kevin Dorcy City Manager Jeff Niten 
Deputy Mayor Deidre Peterson City Clerk Donna Nault 
James Boad Communications Specialist Mary Ricker 
Megan Fiess Administrative Service Dir. Michelle Sutherland  
Kathy McDowell Accounting Manager Teri Schnitzer 
Eric Onisko   
Joe Schmit  Absent:  Mayor Kevin Dorcy 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Roll call – Mayor Kevin Dorcy was absent. 
 
A motion was made and seconded to excuse the absence of Mayor Kevin Dorcy. Passed. 
 
LATE CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
No late changes to the agenda 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS  
One or more councilmembers attended the following meetings and/or events: 
 Governor’s Committee on Disability and Employment 
 County Informational Briefing – Corona Virus 
 Community Panel Interviews - City of Shelton Public Works Director  
 Shelton School District Board Meeting 
 Shelton’s Sport Hall of Fame 
 City Staff Briefings 
 Communications with constituents 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
Crystal Morgan 
Susan Kirchoff 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Vouchers number 101556 in the amount of $21,552.18 
2. Vouchers numbered 101557 through 101594 in the amount of $113,886.55 
3. Meeting Minutes – Business Meeting of December 17, 2019 

 
A motion was made and seconded to approve.  Passed. 
 
BUSINESS AGENDA 

1. Downtown Connector Final Acceptance – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
 
Councilmember Schmit – There were no liquidated damages from the project.  In the 
future, having evaluations completed of the prime contractor would be a useful tool to 
have for future projects. 

City Councilmembers concurred to place Final Acceptance of the Downtown Connector 
Project on the Action Agenda for March 17, 2020.   



 
 

Business Meeting Minutes – March 3, 2020 Page 2 of 2 
 

2. Department of Commerce Grant Acceptance for the Civic Center Parking Lot – 
Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
 
City Councilmembers concurred to place the Department of Commerce Grant 
Acceptance for the Civic Center Parking Lot on the Action Agenda for March 17, 
2020. 
 

ACTION AGENDA 
No action items to discuss 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
Mike Olsen 
Marilyn Ward 
 
Mayor Kevin Dorcy sits as Chairman on the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee and will 
contact Marilyn Ward regarding the status of the signage that was funded from Lodging 
Tax monies by the Mason-Shelton Chamber of Commerce for the Highway 101 Corridor. 
 
ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 

1. Update OpenGov – The City of Shelton’s initiative utilizing OpenGov as a 
transparency portal that allows the community to access financial and other 
information through the City’s website. There will be access to financial information 
for the development of the 2020-2021 budget, which begins later this year. 

2. Lean Training – The Public Works and Planning Departments participated in 
continuous process improvement training.   

3. Census 2020 – The City will be utilizing social media platforms to encourage census 
participation, and will be meeting with school district representatives to assist in 
reaching as many people as possible. 

4. Coronavirus – Information was shared with employees on best practices, 
precautions, monitoring updates, and working closely with local partners at the 
County and the Public Health Department. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Performance of a Public Employee – No action required 
 
The business meeting was adjourned for a 30 minute Executive Session.  Executive 
Session was opened at 6:31 p.m. and adjourned at 7:01 p.m.  The regular business 
meeting was resumed at 7:01 p.m. 

 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
No new items. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
March 17, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
ADJOURN 
As there was no further business, Deputy Mayor Deidre Peterson adjourned the meeting at  
7:02 p.m. 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor       City Clerk 



ROC Northwest
Se llin g  Se m in a r



Agenda
● W h o  Are  W e
● Ho w  W e  Do  Th is
● Th e  Acq u isit io n  P ro ce ss
● Q&A



Who Are We
● Re g io n a l n o n p ro fit  su p p o rt in g  h o u sin g  co o p e ra t ive  d e ve lo p m e n t
● Affilia t e  o f a  n a t io n a l o rg a n iza t io n , ROC USA w it h  o ve r 250  ROCs
● Exp e rie n ce d  b u ye rs  w it h  o ve r 15 t ra n sa c t io n s s in ce  20 16, 

re p re se n t in g  o ve r $23M in  t ra n sa c t io n s



How We Do This
● Se cu re  a n d  d e d ica t e d  fin a n c in g  
● Ma rke t  s t a n d a rd  t im e  fra m e s
● De d ica t e d  d u e  d ilig e n ce  t e a m  
● Exp e rie n ce d  co m m u n it y t e ch n ica l a ssis t a n ce  p ro vid e rs



1
2
3
4
5

Ne g o t ia t e  P rice

Sig n  P u rch a se  a n d  Sa le  Ag re e m e n t

Offe r Ag re e m e n t  t o  Re sid e n t s

Du e  Dilig e n ce  a n d  Fin a n c in g  

Closin g   

Th e  Acq u isit io n  P ro ce ss



● Work directly with seller and 
b ro ke r, n o t  re sid e n t s  

● In co m e  ca p it a liza t io n  a n d  
sa le s  va lu a t io n  

● W e  n e e d  t h re e  ye a rs  o f:
○ P &L
○ Re n t  ro lls
○ An y su rve ys / re p o rt s

1
Ne g o t ia t e  P rice



● Market standard closing 
t im e lin e s

● Assig n a b le  a g re e m e n t  
● Re a l e st a t e  e xc ise  t a x 

e xe m p t io n

2
Sig n  P u rch a se  

a n d  Sa le  
Ag re e m e n t



● ROC Northwest hosts a 
re sid e n t  m e e t in g  fo r 
d iscu ssio n  a n d  vo t e

● ROC No rt h w e st  e st a b lish e s 
re sid e n t  co o p e ra t ive  a n d  
p ro vid e s t e ch n ica l a ssis t a n ce  

● Re sid e n t  co o p e ra t ive  t a ke s 
a ssig n m e n t  

3
Offe r Assig n m e n t  

t o  Re sid e n t s



● ROC Northwest coordinates
● Typ ica lly in c lu d e s:

○ En viro n m e n t a l P h a se  1
○ Bo u n d a ry Su rve y
○ Co m m e rc ia l Ap p ra isa l

● De d ica t e d  le n d e rs  fo cu se d  
o n  m a n u fa c t u re d  h o m e  
p a rks

4
Du e  Dilig e n ce  a n d  

Fin a n c in g



● Cash at closing 
● Re sid e n t  o w n e d  co o p e ra t ive  

ce le b ra t io n  5
Clo sin g  



Q&A



Victoria 
O’Ba n io n

vic t o ria @n w cd c .co o p
30 8 .991.5663

mailto:victoria@nwcdc.coop


 1 

City of Shelton Department of Community Development 
 

STAFF REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

Project Name: Shelton Municipal Code 2020 Updates 
 
 
 
Project Description: 
 

The Shelton Municipal Code (SMC) contains the rules, regulations, or codes 
enacted into law by the City Council. It provides for flexibility in administration 
of municipal government to meet local needs.  As time and conditions 
change, the SMC is updated to account for State or Federal requirements, 
public safety, and health.   
 
Staff is undertaking a wholesale review of the SMC to determine whether 
codes are outdated or inaccurate, no longer meet State or Federal standards, 
meet the City Council’s goals, and provide clear and definitive regulations.   
 
Staff is requesting City Council review the following list of SMC Chapters 
identified for changes and provide direction.  Further review will be provided 
to the Council as proposed edits are developed.  
 
 
 
 
Police 
 

Chapter Section Proposed changes 
8 Junk storage Addressing stored junk vehicles and salvage on private property 
9 Controlled 

substance 
prohibited 

New addition to address illegal narcotics in city limits, misdemeanor 
arrest. 

11 Unattached 
trailers 
prohibited 

New code to address dump trailers, cargo trailer, campers not attached 
to a vehicles parked on city street/ right of way for extended periods 

11 Abandoned 
vehicles 

Prohibit storage of vehicles on city street/right of way for extended 
periods of time. 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

 
Community Development 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chapter Section Proposed changes 
7  Animals 
7.04.180 
Animals 

Dogs prohibited in city 
parks 

Edit to define park regulations  

8.68.030 
Park regulations 

Alcoholic beverages Update to include provisions under special event rules 

8.68.140 
Park regulations 

Pet animals Update to include dog parks and other areas allowed 

17 Permit Review and Processing 
17  Edit to provide clarity and consistency with permit 

applications classified for processing review 
17.08.010  Update to reference adopted fee schedule 
18 Building, Construction, Mobile/Manufactured Homes & Flood Damage Protection 
18 
 

 
 

Adopt 2018 International building, mechanical, plumbing, 
fire, Washington State energy code, uniform code for 
abatement of dangerous buildings, uniform housing code, 
climatic and geographic design criteria 

18 18.14 Add single room occupancy definitions 

18  2018 property maintenance code 

19 Subdivisions 
19.27 Parks and recreation 

standards 
Adopt specific standards as identified in PROST Plan  

19.28 
 

Short subdivisions Increase maximum lots from four to nine 



 3 

 
Community Development - continued 

 
 

20 Zoning 
20  Building height in zones other than neighborhood 

residential increased building and fire code will regulate 
20.08.020 
 

Duplex triplex Increase allowances of placement 

20.08.020 
 

Secondary dwelling 
units(ADU) 

Remove owner occupancy requirement, review size 
maximum, parking requirement 

20.08.020 Accessory u Chickens in neighborhood residential(currently on acre 
lots only) 

20.08.050 Setbacks Explore setbacks that promote livable neighborhoods,  
building heights 

20.32 Planned Unit 
Development 

Add single room occupancy definitions 

20.38 Signs Update to meet current law- content cannot be 
considered, electronic reader boards, murals, temporary 
signs 

20.60 Landscaping/Screening Refine and clarify landscape requirements including 
addition of trees in NR, storm ponds etc.   

20.64 
Design 
standards 

Design standard Clarify and/or add design standards to all categories 
Progressive list for increasing intensive development 

20.64.040 
Design 
standards 

Secondary dwelling 
units 

Remove owner occupancy requirement, review size 
maximum, parking requirement 

20.65.050 
North 
Sheltonville 
Historic District 

Design standards Clarify guidelines 

20.67.050 
Simpson-Reed 
Historic District 

Design standards Clarify guidelines 

New sections to add 
  Heritage, landmark, public tree preservation 
  Dark Skies 
  Expiration of approvals 
  Cottage/carriage homes  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4 

Administrative Services 

 
 

 
Finance 
 

Chapter Section Proposed changes 
2.12.020  Update language to current responsibilities, duties, and powers (does 

this need to be done for all directors) 
3.65  New section for City investment rules 
3.66  New section for debt financing and internal loans 
3.04.260  Add Capital Resources Fund 
2.32  Add Administration department 
3.10.020  Add definition for “director” 
3.67  Add Transportation Benefit District tax (purpose discussed in title 12 

but not the authority to tax) 
3.52  Updated B&O ordinance to match state model ordinance language 
3.10  Update administrative provisions with updated language from 

ordinance 
 
 

     Clerk 
 
Chapter Section Proposed changes 
2 Administration and Personnel 
2.04 
Council Meetings 

2.04.010 
Time & place 

Study sessions held at 5:00pm before regular business meetings. 

2.06 
City Departments 

2.06.020 
Definitions 

Department list needs to be updated. 

2.08 
Reassignment of 
Authority 

2.08.020 
Director of 
Planning 

Change Director of Planning to Director of Community 
Development 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Chapter Section Proposed changes 
2 Add Add Administrative Services Department 
2.44  Does the fire department information remain there? 
2.78 Remove Public Works/Planning/Development Services Manager position does 

not exist 

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Shelton/#!/Shelton02/Shelton0278.html#2.78


 5 

 
 
Public Works 

 
Chapter Section Proposed changes 
2 Administration and Personnel 
2.78 
 

Public 
Works/Planning/ 
Development  
Services 
Manager 

Consider the removal of the section. The job duties described 
are completed by the Community Development and Public 
Works Directors. 

 
Chapter Section Proposed changes 
8 Health and Sanitation 
8.04 
 

Health 
Officer 

Update the section to describe the role of the County Health 
Department. Confirm the legal responsibilities of the City.  

8.08 Solid Waste 
Collection 

Revise section 8.08.030 to allow vacant properties that do not 
have a current water account to also suspend garbage service. 
Update the citations of the “County” Health Officer. 
 
Move the current rate information found in section 8.08.070.I to 
a fee schedule. 
 
Remove the former rate schedule tables found in sections 
8.08.110 to 8.08.135. Add information in the master fee schedule 
to identify the location of the current solid waste rate schedules. 
 

   
 
Chapter Section Proposed changes 
11 Traffic Control 
11.04 
 

Designations 
of Specific 
Streets 

Confirm the 30 mph posted speed on the streets listed in section 
11.04.010. 
Confirm the list of arterial streets in section 11.04.020.  

 
Chapter Section Proposed changes 
12 Streets and Sidewalks 
12.04 
 

Sidewalk 
Specifications 

Clarify the location/intent of sidewalk construction locations and 
materials of section 12.04.010. 
Update section 12.04.020 (cross slope) to reference the 
Engineering Design and Construction Standards. 

12.08 Sidewalk 
Construction 

Update 12.08.020A. and 12.08.020B to reference the current 
version of the Design and Construction Standards. 

  Correct the misspelled word to indicate “removal” in 12.08.020.C 
  12.08.040, 12.08.040, and 12.08.130, change the citation of the 

“director of planning” to the “community development director”. 
12.12 Local 

Improvement 
12.12.010 to 12.12.130, update the sections per the current State 
Statutes and City Attorney recommendations. Add sections for 



 6 

Districts non-payment liens and collection. 
12.20 Right-of-Way 

Use Code 
12.20.030, add verbiage to include construction permits for new 
development, such as public right-of-way created with single 
family home subdivisions. Consider consolidation of the various 
permit types into one permit process.  
12.20.130, update the right-of-way permit appeal process section 
to be similar to other sections, utilizing the City manager 
review/decision making process. 
 

12.22 Protection 
and 
Preservation 
of Trees 

Consider having the adjacent property owner maintain the right-
of-way street trees, to coincide with the property owner sidewalk 
and planter strip maintenance responsibilities. 

12.36 Frontage 
Improvement 
Charge 

The fee was not set/established by Council in 2016 and no fees 
have been collected to date? Consider removing or make 
amendments to the code section. 

   
 
13 Stormwater 
13.02 Stormwater 

Management 
Update sections to correspond with the phase 2 permit 
requirements with the State Department of Ecology. Adopt the 
current version of the State DOE design manual. 

13.04 Stormwater 
Utility 

13.04.150, further identify the stormwater connection permit 
application process, permit fee, duration, development 
standards, and performance of permitted work. 
13.04.210, rates and charges, may be revised by Council per the 
ongoing rate study. 
13.04.220, rate reductions, discuss the three eligible rate 
reduction criteria as it relates to the State phase 2 permit 
requirements. 
13.04.120, consider moving the storm water rate charges from 
the municipal code to the master fee schedule. 
 
Add a section defining prohibited discharges and enforcement 
procedures. 

 
Chapter Section Proposed changes 
14 Sewers 
14.12 Connections 14.12.020, clarify that a separate public gravity connection is 

required to each lot or parcel. 
14.12.090, clarify that all side sewers in the public right-of-way 
are gravity flow. 
14.12.120, consider modifying this provision to limit the use to 
only one private single family residence gravity sewer line 
connection. All other connections would require a public gravity 
sewer extension and easement (city maintains facility).  

14.16 Sewer Mains 
and Main 
Extensions 

14.16.010, add that main extensions are to the far side property 
line(s) (not line) 
14.16.030, change the applicable standards from APWA to City 



 7 

Design and Construction Standards. 
14.20 Capital Hill 

Requirements 
Confirm that this special assessment district has ended and the 
Chapter can be removed from the municipal code, including 
citations in other sections. 

14.28 Sewer Service 
Rates and 
Charges 

Add a section incorporating the sewer system general facility 
capacity charges and the rates are found in the master fee 
schedule. 
 
Consider moving the sewer rate charges from the municipal code 
to the master fee schedule. 

Chapter Section Proposed changes 
15 Water 
15.04 Definitions 15.04.190, remove PVC, cast iron and asbestos cement pipe, and 

identify that a permanent main is ductile iron pipe. 
15.04.260, Temporary main, add as approved by the Public 
Works Director. 

 Water Meters 15.20.010, meter ownership and installation, add citation that 
meter are sized by the current city adopted version of the 
Uniform Plumbing Code. 

15.24 Water Mains 
and Main 
Extensions 

15.24.010.B  “all main extensions extend to and across the full 
width of the property served with water”, consider adding “and 
to all abutting properties, as needed”. 

   
15.28 Water Service 

Rates and 
Charges 

Add a section incorporating the water system general facility 
capacity charges and the rates are found in the master fee 
schedule. 
 
Consider moving the water rate charges from the municipal code 
to the master fee schedule 

   
Chapter Section Proposed changes 
16 Reclaimed Water 
16.06 Use of 

Reclaimed 
Water 

16.06.010, consider moving the rate charges for reclaimed water 
to the master fee schedule. 
 

Chapter Section Proposed changes 
17 Permit Review and Processing 
17.02 Definitions Confirm that the definitions accurately describe system capacity 

charges for traffic, water, and sanitary sewer systems. 
17.10 Water and 

Sewer Service 
Outside City 
Limits 

17.10.020.H, confirm the intent. Is the owner is required to 
connect to both water and sewer service, or just agree to connect 
in the future?  

17.12 Traffic Impact 
Fees 

Complete a legal review of the section and update sections per 
the current State Statutes and City Attorney recommendations. 

 



Council Briefing Form   

 
 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F1) 

Touch Date: 04/21/20 
Brief Date:       07/07/20 
Action Date:  07/21/20 

Department:  Community Development 
 
Presented By:  Mark Ziegler 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
The City of Shelton entered into a lease agreement with Panza for approximately 3.233 acres located near the Shelton 
Springs Road and North 13th Street intersection for the development of a housing program and ancillary services for 
homeless veterans. The lease agreement stipulates Shelton Municipal Code (SMC) compliance with development 
standards and the necessary amendments to allow Single Room Occupancy (SRO) as defined. SMC Chapters 18 
Building, Construction, Mobile/Manufactured Homes and Flood Damage Prevention and Chapter 20 Zoning 
require amendments to meet the intent and allow for the construction of housing units outlined in the lease 
agreement.   
 
An additional amendment is proposed to Chapter 20.32.110(8) deleting redundant language in this section.  
 

       ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES: 
       N/A  

   
       BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
       Adoption of the amendments has no budget impact. 
    
      PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

           Public notice has been published in the newspaper of record on June 25, 2020. 
 

      STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
      Staff recommends the Council concur to move this item to the Action Agenda for the meeting on July 21, 2020.    
      If action is recommended, please include the proposed motion: 
      Conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 1949-0220 amending Shelton Municipal Code Chapter 18 adding 
      definition of single room occupancy units and Chapter 20 adding single room occupancy in form and 
      configuration in neighborhood residential and mixed use planned unit developments. 
       

 

 
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
    Single Room Occupancy 

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
     Ordinance No. 1949-0220 
     Panza lease agreement 
      
      
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      



 
ORDINANCE NO.1949-0220 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, 

RELATING TO LAND USE AND ZONING, ADDING A NEW SECTION 18.02.110 TO 
THE SHELTON MUNICIPAL CODE AND AMENDING CHAPTER 20.32.110, 

CONCERNING SINGLE ROOM OCCUPANCY DEVELOPMENTS. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Shelton enacts land use, development, building, mechanical, fire and other 
codes to protect lives and assure public safety; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, in May of 2019 the City Council executed a Lease Agreement with Panza, D/B/A 
Quixote Communities, for construction of a Tiny Homes Village to house low income veterans and 
other tenants; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Panza Lease authorizes construction of housing units in a Single Residential 
Occupancy (“SRO”) format not currently authorized under the Shelton Municipal Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to allow construction of residential units in a SRO format in 
limited circumstances; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the proposed amendments at a properly noticed 
public meeting and held a properly noticed public hearing on May 5th, 2020, so as to receive public 

testimony; and 

 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106, the City provided the Washington State 
Department of Commerce with a 60-day notice of its intent to adopt the amendment(s) to its Unified 
Development Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, an environmental review of the proposed amendments to the Development Code was 
conducted in accordance with the requirement of the State Environmental Policy Act (“SEPA”), and 
a non-project SEPA Determination of Non-significance was issued for the amendments on April 21, 
2020, which was transmitted to relevant State and local agencies, published in the Shelton/Mason 
County Journal and posted in public places; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the entire public record, public comments, 
written and oral; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered this Ordinance, together with all public 
comment, and has determined that the proposed amendments are in accord with the Comprehensive 
Plan, will not adversely affect the public health, safety, or general welfare, and are in the best interest 
of the citizens of the City. 
 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, do ordain as 
follows: 
 
 
Section 1. A new section 18.02.110 is added to the Shelton Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 
 
18.02.110 Single Room Occupancy Sleeping Unit. 
 
“Single Room Occupancy Sleeping Unit” (sleeping unit) is a structure that provides living units that have separate 
sleeping areas, each of which must be at least 120 square feet and have access to both sanitary facilities and a full 
common kitchen facility, subject to the following: 
 

A. Sanitary Facilities shall include: 
 

1. At least one flush toilet, lavatory basin, and bathtub or shower must be supplied for each sleeping 
unit.  Lavatory basins and showers must have adequate quantities of hot and cold running water. 

2. All sanitary facilities must be in proper operating condition and be adequate for personal 
cleanliness and the disposal of human waste.  The facilities must utilize an approvable public or 
private disposal system as required by Title 14 of the Shelton Municipal Code and public works 
standards. 

 
B. Space and security. 

1. Each sleeping unit must have 120 square feet of floor space and at least 4 square feet of closet 
space. 

2. Exterior doors and windows accessible from the outside must be lockable 
 

C. Access. 
1. Residents must be able to access their sleeping unit, sanitary, and kitchen facilities without passing 

through another sleeping unit. 
2. Kitchen and sanitary facilities may be located in a detached community building located on the 

same site as the sleeping units. 
D. Use and location. 

1. Single Room Occupancy units may only be located within Neighborhood Residential Zone and 
Mixed Use Zones. A Planned Unit Development permit shall be required for all single room 
occupancies. 

2. Sleeping units shall not be for transitory housing (the rental of any building or portion thereof used 
for the purpose of providing lodging for periods of less than 30 days. 

3. Sleeping units shall either be owner-occupied, or shall provide housing for a tenant, pursuant to a 
Lease Agreement. 

4. The following uses are not considered single room occupancy sleeping units: boarding houses, 
hotels and motels, extended stay hotels and motels, assisted living facilities, convalescent/nursing 
homes, and facilities which provide short-term or long-term care for tenants suffering from 
physical, mental or other disabilities.  

 
Section 2. Shelton Municipal Code Section 20.32.110 is amended to read as follows: 
 
 
20.32.110 Form and configuration in residential and mixed use. 
 
A.    Residential PUDs and residential components of mixed use PUDs may utilize the following techniques and 
incorporate the following uses: 

1.    Four-unit dwelling clusters with party walls; 



2.    Town houses or patio homes with party walls; 

3.    Double-row houses with party side and rear walls; 

4.    Condominium ownership in multifamily buildings; 

5.    Varied lot size divisions; 

6.    Establishment of greenbelts, parks or other open area, or community buildings or recreation facilities; 

7.    Zero-lot line developments; 

8.    Z-lots, or other modified zero-lot line detached single-family developments; 9. Single Room Occupancy 
(SRO) Residential Development as defined in Shelton Municipal Code Section 18.02.110. 

109.    Multifamily project developments (i.e., apartment buildings/complexes).   

1110.    Neighborhood commercial uses as defined in SMC 20.44.290. 
 
 
Section 3. Effective date.  This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 

 

INTRODUCED the 5th day of May 2020.  

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Mason County Washington at a regular open 
public meeting held the 19th day of May, 2020. 

 

 ATTEST: 

 

___________________    __________________ 
City Clerk       Mayor Dorcy  
 
        
         
        
 

































Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F2) 

Touch Date: 06/29/20 
Brief Date:       07/07/20 
Action Date:  07/21/20 

Department:  Executive 
 
Presented By:  Jeff Niten 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
     Master Fee Schedule Update 

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
     Resolution 1160-0620 
     Exhibit “A” 
      
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
JN      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The Master Fee Schedule is intended to recover costs associated with services that the City provides, notably 
building, land use, and public works permitting activities to ensure a livable community that meets Washington 
State Building code requirements, engineering standards, and creates the type of environment our community 
expects. 
 
This minor update is a companion piece to Ordinance 1949-0220 adopting standards for Tiny Homes within the 
City of Shelton.  As agreed during negotiations for the Veterans Village project, water and sewer General 
Facilities Charges (GFC) will be twenty-five percent (25%) of the standard charge for a dwelling unit within the 
City due to the smaller size and resulting water consumption anticipated by tiny homes.   
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
The Council may adopt or revise the attached draft Master Fee Schedule as desired. 

   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Water and Sewer funds will be impacted slightly, however Tiny Homes that conform to the standards outlined 
SMC 18.02.110 are limited to single occupants and will use substantially less water than a traditional single 
family dwelling unit.  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

   Information regarding this proposal is available through the City Clerk’s office. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends the Council concur to move this item to the July 21, 2020 action agenda. 
 



06/30/20 1 2:56 PM 

RESOLUTION NO.  1160-0620 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON SUPERSEDING RESOLUTION  
NO. 1155-0120 (MASTER FEE SCHEDULE) 

 
 
WHEREAS, it is the general policy of the city to establish fees that are reflective of the cost of services provided 
by the city; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Shelton City Council approved Resolution No. 1155-0120 at a regular meeting held on February 
4, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Shelton City Council desires to update fees and charges with the Master Fee Schedule; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Shelton City Council authorizes the Mayor to sign Resolution 1160-0260. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Public Interest.  The City Council for the City of Shelton, Washington finds that it is in the public 
interest to amend and supersede the previously adopted Master Fee Schedule to address costs associated with 
providing services. 
 
Section 2.  Supersede previous Resolutions.  This resolution inclusive of Exhibit “A” attached hereto shall 
supersede in its entirety Resolution No. 1155-0120 previously approved by the Shelton City Council. 
 
Section 3.  Adjustments.  The Shelton City Council amends the Master Fee Schedule to include Exhibit “A”. 
 
Section 4.  Effective date.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect on August 1, 2020. 
 
INTRODUCED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on this 7th day of July 2020. 
 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on the 21st day of July 2020. 
 
 
 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Dorcy 
 
   
___________________________  
City Clerk Nault    
     
 
                          



 

1 
 

 
 
 

 

City of Shelton  

525 W. Cota Street 

Shelton, Washington  98584 

Master Fee Schedule 

RES NO. 1160-0620 

Exhibit “A” 

 

 

General Government………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 2 

Animal Shelter……………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 3 

Civic Center………………………………………………………………………………………………….. pg. 3 

Code Enforcement……………………………………………………………………………………….. pg. 4 

Parks and Recreation…………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 4 

Police Department…………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 4 

Community Development…………………………………………………………………………………………....... pg. 5 

Planning………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 5 

Building……………………………………………………………………..………………………………… pg. 6 

  Fire……………………………………………………………………….……………………………..….pg. 14 

Public Works………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 14 

Sanitary Sewer…………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 15 

Reclaimed Water……………………………………………………………………………….………. pg. 16 

Water……………………………………………………………………………………………….……….. pg. 17 

Misc. and Grade and Fill…………………………………………………………………..………… pg. 18 

 

 

 



 

2 
 

 

 

Type of Permit        Fee 

 

General Government           

Annual Report $10.00 

Documents provided at Public Hearings 
Audio Reproduction (when requested within 
one year of hearing).  *Other than Police 

$0.00 (within one year) 
$10.00 (requested after one year of hearing 

date) 
Video Reproduction * Other than Police $10.00 
Copies  $0.15 per page 

Scanned copies to electronic format $0.10 per page 

Files or attachments for electronic delivery $0.05 per four (4) attachments 

Gigabyte of electronic records for 
transmission 

$0.10 per gigabyte 

Storage media, container, envelope, postage 
and delivery charge 

Actual Cost 

R.C.W. 42.56.120 (2) (b) (c) and (e)  

New and renewal of Business License $50.00 

Sexually Oriented Business License $100.00 

Sexually Oriented Manager or Entertainer $50.00 

Taxi Operator License (per operator) $40.00 

Taxi Vehicle License (per vehicle) $40.00 

Returned Check charge $40.00 

VISA/MC chargeback $35.00 

Special Event Permit $35.00 (An additional $25.00 is due for 
applications received 25 business days or less 

prior to the event).  
City Special Event services (barricades, 
garbage, etc.) 

$25.00 (per event, per service) 

Displays on City message boards $30.00 



 

3 
 

Map Reproduction Color 36 x 48 $18.00 
Color 24 x 36 $12.00 

Special Order 36 x 48 $30.00 
Special Order 24 x 36 $20.00 

Black Line $1.00 (Per square foot) 
 

Animal Shelter 

Adoption Fee $80.00 ($100.00) 

Adoption Fee with Rabies Vaccine $112.50 

Animal License ($5.00 discount for 

spayed/neutered dogs) No fee for service 

dogs. Senior citizen 65 yrs. and older 50% off 

licensing.  

$15.00($30.00) 

Rabies Vaccination $32.50 

Surrender of Dog (City residents only) $25.00($40.00) 

Animal Impound (City residents) First impoundment $30.00($50.00) 
Second impoundment $50.00($75.00) 

Third and subsequent impoundment $100.00($150.00) 
All impound fees shall also be charged unpaid animal 

license fees.  
Boarding fee (over 48 hours) $15.00 per day($30.00) 

Lost license or transfer of license $5.00($10.00) 

Non-resident animal impound fee First impoundment $80.00($150.00) 
Second impoundment $130.00($200.00) 

Third and subsequent impoundment $180.00($250.00) 
 

Civic Center Rental  

Damage Deposit $300.00 

Kitchen $50.00 

Black drapery $2.00 (per 10 foot section) 

Staging $10.00 (use of 1 – 4 sections) 



 

4 
 

Equipment Rental 25” TV Monitor/VCR $10.00 
Multimedia Projector $20.00 

Coffee Service $25.00 (per gallon) 

Meeting rooms $22.00 per hour for each 600 sq. ft. 

Main meeting room $75.00 per hour 

 

Code Enforcement 

Infraction Issued 
Fees including site visit(s), photos, file 
creation, documentation, etc.  Plus itemized 
fees to include attorney costs, additional 
tracked staff time and costs, title searches, 
service, court filing fees, which may be 
included in the city request for abatement 
cost reimbursement per R.C.W. 35.21.955 

$68.00 minimum 

 

Parks and Recreation 

Parks Master Plan $20.00 

Ballfields and Playfields (Callanan Park/Loop 
Field. 

Field Rental $12.00 per hour 
Softball Field preparation $20.00 each field 

City recreation programs Actual cost of program 

Refunds Before first class: %100 
Before second class: %80 

Before third class: %50 
After third class: No refunds 

Picnic Shelters $12.50 per hour.  Two hour minimum, plus 
applicable fees for garbage, labor, misc. 

Commercial Park (Use by individual, 
company, corporation, business or similar for 
the purposes of selling, distributing, or 
promotion.  

$25.00 

 

Police Department  

Fingerprints $60.00 



 

5 
 

Video Reproduction Time and material 

Audio Reproduction Time and material 

Weapons Permit  $49.25 

Weapons Permit renewal  $32.00 

Weapons Permit renewal – late application $42.00 

Weapons Permit – replacement $10.00 

Weapons Dealer Permit $125.00 

Excess Alarm fee $25.00 after three (3) false alarms 

 

Community Development – Planning 

Address Assignment $100.00 

Annexation  $1,200.00 plus $40.00 per acre or fraction 
thereof.   

Appeal to the Hearing Examiner Individual - $1,000.00 
H.O.A. - $500.00 

Boundary Line Adjustment $315.00 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment $2,600.00 

Comprehensive Plan document $35.00 

Conditional Use Permit $2,700.00 

SEPA $300.00 

EIS $1,400.00 plus consultant costs 

Fence $75.00 residential 
$180.00 commercial 

Forest Practices Application $350.00 

Plat/Binding Site Plan Preliminary:  $3,300.00 plus $40.00 per lot 
Extension: $200.00 

Final:  $500.00 plus $30.00 per lot 
Administrative Amendments:  $200.00 

Public Hearing Amendments:  $1,500.00  
Planned Unit Development Preliminary:  $3,000.00 plus $25.00 per lot 

Extension:  $200.00 



 

6 
 

Final:  $500.00 plus $30.00 per lot 
Administrative Amendments:  $200.00 

Public Hearing Amendments:  $1,500.00   
Parcel combination $320.00  

Pre-submittal conference $150.00 

Short Plat $920.00 

Site Plan Review $1,200.00 

Site Plan amendment $110.00 

Variance Permit $2,700.00 

Zone Change  $2,400.00 

Zoning Letter $45.00 

Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment $435.00 

Signs $50.00 when no building permit required 
$55.00 per square foot valuation with 

building permit 
 

Shoreline Specific applications  

Shoreline Management Program document $35.00 

Shoreline Statement of Exemption $170.00 
Substantial Development Permit $560.00 

Public Hearing Required: $2,300.00 
Shoreline Conditional Use Permit $2,300.00 

Shoreline Variance $2,300.00 

 

Community Development – Building 

After Hours Inspections (Regular business 
hours 8am to 5pm Monday through Friday). 

$70.00 per hour (two hour minimum) 

Re-inspection fee $70.00 per hour (one hour minimum) 

Inspections for which no fee is specifically 
indicated. 

$70.00 per hour (one half hour minimum) 

Additional plan review required for plan 
changes. 

$70.00 per hour (one half hour minimum) 



 

7 
 

Note:  For the building fees above, or the 
total hourly cost to the jurisdiction, 
whichever is the greatest. This cost shall 
include supervision, overhead, equipment, 
hourly wages and fringe benefits of the 
employees involved. 
Actual costs include administrative and 
overhead costs. 

 

Building Valuation 

*NOTE: all footnotes of Building Valuation 
Data as published by ICC shall apply 

1) New construction, and remodels greater 
than 50%: of "R" occupancies   The City of 
Shelton will utilize the International Code 
Council’s “Building Valuation Data Table” on 
a two-year lag as published in the August 
edition of the Building Safety Journal.  The 
square footage valuations from this table will 
be implemented on the first day of 
September following publication and remain 
in force through August of the following year. 
2) Private garages, storage buildings, green 
houses and similar structures shall be valued 
as Utility, Miscellaneous  
3) Remodels less than 50% shall be valued at 
50% of the table value from the ICC Building 
Valuation Data for occupancy specified. 

Bulkheads $20.00 per cubic foot 

Building Permit 

NOTE:  Washington State surcharge applies:  

$25.00 Commercial, $6.50 Residential. 

 

Valuation: 
$1.00 to $500.00: $25.00 

$501.00 to $2,000.00:  $25.00 and $3.00 per 
each additional $100 or fraction thereof and 

including $2,000 
$2,001.00 to $25,000.00:  $70.00 and $14.00 

for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof to and including $25,000 

$25,000.00 to $50,000.00:  $390.00 and 
$10.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $50,000 
$50,001.00 to $100,000.00:  $640.00 and 

$7.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof to and including $100,000 

$100,001.00 to $500,000.00:  $1,000.00 and 



 

8 
 

$6.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof to and including $500,000 

500,001.00 to $1,000,000.00:  $3,400.00 and 
$5.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $1,000,000 
$1,000,000 and up: $5,700 and $7.00 for 

each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof to 
and including $1,000,000  

 
       

Maximum Building Permit fee $50,000.00 

Early Foundation Permit/Early start 
agreement (Early foundation permit for 
commercial/industrial building will be 
deducted from permit fee upon full 
submittal. 

25% of building permit fee 

Demolition permit $120.00 plus State surcharge 

Reroof – residential only     $115.00 

Reroof –commercial 

 per square valuation is used to determine 

valuation 

$275.00 per square   - 

Class A&B (hotmop/torchdown) 

$250.00 per square  - 

Composition( roll/3 tab) 

$325.00 per square  - 

Composition with plywood replacement 

$300.00 per square  -  Metal 

$275.00 per square  -  Shake 

$300.00 per square    -   Shingle 

Windows $25.00 first window, $7.00 for each 

additional window 

Reissuance of lost permit card $30.00 

Reissuance of plan package $140.00 

Stock Plans 50% of the ICC fee 



 

9 
 

Solid Fuel/Gas insert $140.00 

Hearing Examiner appeal $2,400.00 

Request for Reconsideration $500.00 

Investigation fee $70.00 per hour 

Mechanical Permit Each mechanical permit:  $25.00 
 
FURNACE: 
For issuing each supplemental permit for 
which the original permit for the original 
permit has not expired, been canceled, or 
final:  $8.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
forced-air or gravity-type furnace or burner, 
including ducts and vents attached to such 
appliance, up to and including 100,000 Btu/h 
(29.3kW):  $16.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
forced-air or gravity-type furnace or burner, 
including ducts and vents attached to such 
appliance, over 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW):  
$20.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each floor 
furnace, including vent:  $16.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
suspended heater, recessed wall heater on 
floor-mounted unit heater:  $16.00 
 
Appliance Vents: 
For the installation, relocation or 
replacement of each appliance vent and not 
included in an appliance permit:  $8.00 
 
Repairs or Additions: 
For the repair of, or addition to each heating 



 

10 
 

appliance, refrigeration unit, cooling unit, 
absorption unit, or each heating, cooling, 
absorption or evaporative cooling system, 
including installation of controls regulated by 
the Mechanical Code:  $15.00 
 
 
Boilers, Compressors, and Absorption 
Systems: 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor to and including 3 
horsepower (10.6 kW), or each absorption 
system to and including 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 
kW):  $15.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over three horsepower 
(10.6 kW) to and including 15 horsepower 
(52.7 kW), or each absorption system over 
100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW) to and including 
500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW):  $30.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 15 horsepower 
(52.7 kW) to and including 30 horsepower 
(105.5 kW), or each absorption system over 
500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW) to and including 
1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW):  $40.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 30 horsepower 
(105.5 kW) to and including 50 horsepower 
(176 kW), or each absorption system over 
1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW) to and including 
1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW):  $60.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 50 horsepower 
(176 kW), or each absorption system over 
1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW):  $100.00 



 

11 
 

 
Air Handlers: 
For each air-handling unit to and including 
10,000 cubic feet per minute (cfm) (4719 
L/s), including ducts attached thereto:  
$12.00 
 
Note: This fee does not apply to an air-
handling unit, which is a portion of a factory- 
assembled appliance, cooling unit, 
evaporative cooler or absorption unit for 
which a permit is required elsewhere in the 
Mechanical Code for each air-handling unit 
over 10,000 cfm (4719 L/s):  $20.00 
 
Evaporative Coolers: 
For each evaporative cooler other than 
portable type:  $12.00 
 
Ventilation and Exhaust: 
For each ventilation fan connected to a single 
duct:  $8.00 
 
For each ventilation system which is not 
portion of any heating or air-conditioning 
system authorized by a permit:  $12.00 
 
For the installation of each hood which is 
served by mechanical exhaust, including the 
ducts for such hood:  $12.00 
 
Incinerators:   
For the installation or relocation of each 
domestic-type incinerator:  $20.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
commercial or industrial-type incinerator:  
$16.00 
 
Miscellaneous: 
For each appliance or piece of equipment 



 

12 
 

regulated by the Mechanical Code but not 
classed in other appliance categories, or for 
which no other fee is listed in the table:  
$12.00 

Mobile/Manufactured Home set-up Individual Lot:  $472.00 
Park Set:  $165.00 

NOTE:  Includes 4x4 landing 
Mobile Home Title Eliminations $30.00 

Plan Review (All types other than 
Mechanical) 
*NOTE: Commercial kitchen based on project 
valuation of engineer's written estimate. 

65% of Permit fee 
Mechanical only:  25% of Permit fee 

Plumbing Permit Each permit:  $25.00 
Each supplemental permit:  $10.00 

 
NOTE: Unit Fee Schedule in addition to above 

 
For each plumbing fixture on one trap or a 
set of fixtures on one trap (including water, 
drainage piping, and backflow protection 
therefore):  $8.00 
 
For each building sewer and each trailer park 
sewer:  $16.00 
 
Rainwater systems per drain (inside building):  
$8.00 
 
For each cesspool where permitted:  $27.00 
 
For each private sewage disposal system:  
$45.00 
 
For each water heater and/or vent:  $8.00 
 
For each industrial waste pretreatment 
interceptor including its trap and vent, except 
kitchen-type grease interceptors functioning 
as fixture traps:  $8.00 
 



 

13 
 

For each installation, alteration or repair of 
water piping and/or water treating 
equipment, each:  $8.00 
 
For each repair or alteration of drainage or 
vent piping, each fixture:  $8.00 
 
For each lawn sprinkler system on any one 
meter including backflow protection devices 
therefore:  $8.00 
 
For each backflow protective device other 
than atmospheric type vacuum breakers: 

• 2 inch (51 mm) diameter and smaller:  
$8.00 

• over 2 inch (51 mm) diameter:  
$16.00 

Atmospheric-type vacuum breakers: 
• 1 to 5:  $5.00 
• over 5, each:  $2.00 

Propane Tanks and Piping (above and below 
ground) 

$12.00 per tank 

Refund: 
2015-IBC Section 109.6 / 2015-IRC Section 
R108.5 

The building official may authorize refunding 
on not more than fifty percent (50%) of the 
permit fee paid when no work has been done 
under a permit issued in accordance with this 
code.  The building official may authorize   
refunding of not more than seventy-five 
percent (75%) of the plan review fee paid 
when an applicant for a permit for which a 
plan review fee has not been paid is 
withdrawn or canceled before any plan 
reviewing is done. The building official shall 
not authorize refunding of any fee paid 
except on written application filed by the 
original permittee no later than 180 days 
after the date of fee paid. 

 

 



 

14 
 

 

 

 

Fire Department  

 

Automatic Fire Alarm $350.00 

Flow Test (one-time) $140.00  

Fixed Fire Suppression $200.00 

Auto Sprinkler System $350.00 

Commercial Project Plan Review $325.00 up to 3,600 square feet 

$400.00 3,600 to 10,000 square feet 

$475.00 over 10,000 square feet 

Overtime Plan Review $101.00 per hour 

Public Fireworks Display $100.00 

 

 

Public Works 

Right-of-Way and Obstruction Permits Short term maintenance permit:  $45.00 
Temporary Construction of Heavy Use 
Permit:  $65.00 plus inspection fees 
Fixture and Encroachment Permit:  $65.00 
$15.00 annual renewal fee. If for sidewalk 
café, add $280.00/hr. review fee. 

Fine for Work in Right of Way without 
Permits 

$250.00 plus standard permit fee 

Special Development Studies:  Traffic Impact 
Reports, Hydrology studies, and similar. 

Contract Consultant fees 

Traffic Impact Fee $3,735.71 for SFR/varies based on use.  ORD. 
1907-1017 Exhibit B 

Civil Plan review $225.00 per hour 
Inspection Fees $85.00 per hour 



 

15 
 

Latecomer Agreement  $280.00 
Right-of-Way vacation $500.00 
Sewer Connection Charges Utility Application Permit:  $65.00 plus 

applicable GFC 
Class A Bio-Solids Fertilizer fee $20.00 per 1.66 cyd bag 

 

Sewer GFC 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4" 1.00 $3,258.00 

1” 2.50 $8,145.00 

1.5” 5.00 $16,290.00 

2” 8.00 $26,064.00 

3” 16.00 $48,870.00 

4” 25.00 $81,495.00 

6” 50.00 $162,900.00 

8” 80.00 $260,640.00 

• Developments pursuant to SMC 18.02.110 shall be charged twenty-five percent (25%) of 

the equivalent charge above. 

Sewer GFC (Grandview Heights only) 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4“ 1.00 $1,629.00 

1“ 2.50 $4,072.00 

1.5” 5.00 $8,145.00 

2” 8.00 $13,032.00 

3” 16.00 $24,435.00 

4” 25.00 $40,725.00 

6” 50.00 $81,495.00 

8” 80.00 $130,320.00 



 

16 
 

 

Reclaimed Water 

Water Meter Charge         Fee 

3/4" Meter $238.16 

1” $354.91 

1.5” $760.43 

2” $1,029.38 

3” $2,018.65 

4” $3,170.16 

6” $4,298.21 

Above 6” $6,095.57 

 

 

 

 

Reclaimed Water GFC 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4”  1.00 $326.00 

1” 2.50 $815.00 

1.5” 5.00 $1,629.00 

2” 8.00 $2,606.00 

3” 16.00 $4,887.00 

4” 25.00 $8,150.00 

6” 50.00 $16,290.00 

8” 80.00 $26,064.00 

 

Water Fees 



 

17 
 

Water Turn off (regular business hours) $100.00 

Water Turn off (after business hours) $250.00 

Water Turn on (regular business hours, 60 
days or more since turn off.  59 days or less 
no charge) 

$135.00 

Water Turn on (after business hours) $275.00 

Annual Hydrant Water Use permit $70.00 

Hydrant Water Load $145.00 (Commercial consumption charge 
per SMC 15.28.050) 

Hydrant Meter Fee and Deposit $70.00 plus $750.00 refundable deposit 

Hydrant Gate Valve Fee and Deposit $35.00 plus $300.00 refundable deposit 

Hydrant Wrench Fee and Deposit $35.00 plus $50.00 refundable deposit  

Fine for connection to hydrant without 
permit 

$1,000.00 

Fine for connection to hydrant without meter $500.00 

Fine for unauthorized 
connection/disconnection of water service 

$500.00 

Utility Permit  $170.00 plus applicable GFC 

 

Water Meter Charge 

3/4" meter $238.16 

1” meter $354.91 

1.5” meter $760.43 

2” meter $1,029.38 

3” meter $2,018.65 

4” meter $3,170.16 

6” meter $4,298.21 

Above 6” meter $6,095.57 

 

Water Meter GFC 



 

18 
 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4” 1.00 $1,260.00 

1” 2.50 $3,150.00 

1.5” 5.00 $6,300.00 

2” 8.00 $10,080.00 

3” 16.00 $18,900.00 

4” 25.00 $31,500.00 

6” 50.00 $63,000.00 

8” 80.00 $100,800.00 

• Developments pursuant to SMC 18.02.110 shall be charged twenty-five percent (25%) of 

the equivalent charge above. 

 

Misc.  

Commercial Fire Line No Charge 

Backflow Testing No Charge 

 

Fill and Grade 

Fill and Grading Plan Review $320.00  

Inspection $80.00 

 

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F3) 

Touch Date:  05/26/2020  
Brief Date:     07/07/2020       
Action Date:  07/21/2020 

Department:  Police/Fire 
   
Presented By:  Darrin Moody/Mike Patti  

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Surplus Vehicles 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  Resolution No. 1161-0620 
  Vehicle Information from Police Dept. 
  Vehicle Information from Fire Dept. 
   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The Police Department has three patrol vehicles that have well exceeded their life as patrol vehicles. Two of the  
vehicles are 2004, and one is a 2003. They are Crown Victoria police vehicles, which are no longer made by  
Ford.  These vehicles have become too costly to maintain, and it is not safe to continue using them as police  
patrol vehicles. 
 
Per the amended ILA for Mason County Fire District #5 to provide EMS and Fire Protection Services 
to the City of Shelton, dated December 20, 2010, Central Mason Fire and EMS has determined that the 
following equipment, (Engine 72 – 1990 Fire Engine, Utility 71 – 1991 Pickup Truck, Engine 71 – 2000 Fire 
Engine) is surplus to the needs of the City of Shelton and Fire District #5 and is returning the 
vehicles to the City of Shelton for auction. 

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
The Police Department and Fire Department would like to surplus the listed vehicles for auction.  

   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
The estimated value of the three patrol vehicles is approximately $6,000 total.  The estimated value of the two 
fire engines and one pickup truck is approximately $11,500 total. 
   
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff and Central Mason Fire recommends the Council concur to move this item to the Action Agenda for the 
July 21, 2020 meeting.   
   



06/30/20 1 3:23 PM 

RESOLUTION NO. 1161-0620 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON DECLARING CITY 
VEHICLES SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF THE CITY, AND DISPOSING OF SUCH 

VEHICLES FOR THE COMMON BENEFIT. 
   

 
WHEREAS, RCW 35A.11.010 and 35A.79.010 allow a municipal code city to dispose of surplus 
property for the common benefit; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City owns vehicles that are no longer needed in order to perform the business of the 
Police Department and Fire Department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as 
follows: 
 
 

1. All property of the City of Shelton Police Department and the City of Shelton Fire Department, 
shown on Exhibit “A”, is hereby declared surplus to the needs of the City. 

 
2. Disposal of property on Exhibit “A” is declared to be for the common benefit. 

 
3. The property herein declared surplus will be disposed of in accordance with City Policy. 

 
 
 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on this ____ day of _____________, 2020. 
 

 
 
 

 
                                                               ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Dorcy 
ATTEST:  
  
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



06/30/20 2 3:23 PM 

 
Exhibit “A” for Resolution No. 1161-0620 

 
 
 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
City Asset # Description    License # Value__________ 
 
  2004 Ford Crown Victoria  19982D  $1000 
 
  2004 Ford Crown Victoria  19983D  $1000 
   
  2003 Ford Crown Victoria                       37203D             $1000 
 
 
 
 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
City Asset # Description    License # Value__________ 
 
Engine72 1990 E-One “Hush” Fire Engine  07026D  $5000 
 
Engine71 2000 E-One “Hush” Fire Engine  19909D  $5000 
   
Utility71 1991 GMC Pickup Truck  07035D  $1500 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 
DATE: May 22, 2020 
  
TO: Chief Moody 
  
FROM: Calvin Moran 
  
RE: Surplus Cars 
 
 
 

 

 
The following cars are recommended to be declared surplus and sold.  
 

(1) Plate# 19982D, VIN 2FAFP71W04X180790, 2004, Ford Crown Victoria, black 
and white, miles 80,000, high mileage, high idle hours, paint coming off roof, 
hood and driver’s door. 16-year-old patrol car. Per Edmunds.com worth about 
$1,897.00, if sold to a private party. 
 

(2) Plate# 19983D, VIN 2FAFP71WX3X222347, 2004, Ford Crown Victoria, 
black, miles 100,000, high mileage, high idle hours, 16-year-old patrol car. 
Per Edmunds.com worth about $2,345.00, if sold to a private party. 

 
 

(3) Plate# 37203D, VIN 2FAHP71W33X194643, 2003 Ford Crown Victoria, 
black, miles 135,000, high mileage, high idle hours, some of the emergency 
equipment no longer works, paint coming off rear doors, 17-year-old patrol 
car. Per Edmunds.com worth $2,087.00, if sold to a private party.       

 



Central Mason Fire & EMS 

Mason County Fire Protection District 5 
 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
“preservation of life, health, property and the environment” 

    

PO Box 1910 360-426-5533 360-427-9438 Fax 
122 W Franklin St 360-275-2889 www.cmfe.org 
Shelton WA 98584 info@cmfe.org facebook.com/CMFE5/ 

 
 
DATE:  June 23, 2020 
 
TO:    DONNA NAULT, CITY CLERK 

FROM:  MIKE PATTI, FIRE CHIEF 

RE:    Surplus Fire Apparatus 

 

Per the Amended Inter-Local Agreement for Mason County Fire District #5 to provide 

EMS and Fire Protection Services to the City of Shelton, dated December 20, 2010, 

Central Mason Fire and EMS hereby returns to the City of Shelton, the following 

vehicles as identified in Item #6: 

• Engine 72, 1990 Fire Engine, License #07026D, VIN# 46JDBAA85L1003257. E-One 

“Hush”, 86,302 miles. Stress fractures in body. Rust in tank.  Estimated value at 

approximately $5,000.00. 

 

• Engine71, 2000 Fire Engine ,License #19909D,VIN# 4EN3AAA85X1000150. E-One 

“Hush” Mileage N/A, Stress fractures in body, Rust in tank and plumbing. 

Estimated value approximately $5,000.00. 

 
• Utility 71,  1991 pickup truck, License # 07035D, VIN# 2GTEC19Z1M1532632. 

GMC light duty (1/2-ton) pickup. Engine smokes.  Paint is coming off hood and 

roof, Interior is rough. Estimated Value approximately $1,500.00. 

 

    



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F4) 

Touch Date: 06/10/20 
Brief Date:       07/07/20 
Action Date:  07/21/20 

Department:  Public Works 
 
Presented By:  Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Basin 3 Final Sewer Rehabilitation 
  Final Acceptance 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  Resolution No  1162-0620 
  PowerPoint Presentation    

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

JOH 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Initial design of the Basin 3 Sewer Rehabilitation project began in July of 2012. After completion of the initial 
design, the project was placed on hold due to financial uncertainties stemming from the poor economic climate 
at that time.   
In anticipation of moving forward with the project, Public Works and Engineering staff began reviewing the 
design plans in December of 2016. At that time, the project had an engineer’s estimated construction cost of 
$7,732,590.08. Of that total, over $4,000,000.00 was expected to come in the form of a loan from the 
Department of Ecology. Several issues were uncovered during the staff review and it was determined that the 
plans were inadequate for construction. 
The Public Works and Engineering staff began working on revised plans and specs immediately, while also 
seeking additional grant funding to reduce the amount of debt the project would incur. With staff revisions in 
place and additional grant funding secured ($4,365,000 from the Department of Commerce and $1,973,882 
from the Department of Ecology), the project went out to bid in January of 2018. At the February 7th bid 
opening, Pivetta Brothers Construction Inc. submitted the low bid of $5,982,441.66 and was awarded the 
project on March 6, 2018. 
Construction commenced April 2, 2018 with 300 working days allowed. By early 2019 it became evident the 
project was going to be coming in under budget, leaving nearly one million dollars in grant funds unspent. Staff 
reached out to the Department of Commerce to receive approval for the remaining grant dollars to be expended 
on constructing new sidewalks and ADA ramps in the project area, citing the additional tasks, although not part 
of the original bid, are required per the WSDOT Standards and our own City Standards, therefore applicable to 
the scope of the project. After the Department of Commerce agreed, staff brought the proposal to the Council 
and in February 2019, Council approved for the remaining grant funds to be expended on ADA compliant curbs 
and sidewalks, as well as allowed for an additional $200,000 be set aside as contingency for potential overruns. 
The added project elements provided the Contractor with 90 additional working days to complete the project. 
The final pay estimate was signed in April 2020, completing construction in 383 working days, seven days 
under Contract, and at a total cost of $6,502,381.49, including tax.  
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  

N/A 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:   

 
Total Authorized Funding ($6,338,882 in grants + $200,000 contingency) $6,538,882 

Final Construction Cost $6,502,381.49 
Contingency Remaining $36,500.51 

 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff requests the Council concur to place Resolution No. 1162-0620 on the July 21, 2020 action agenda.  



RESOLUTION NO. 1162-0620 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, ACCEPTING THE 
BASIN 3 SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT AS FINAL AND COMPLETE 

 

WHEREAS, a Contract for the Basin 3 Sewer Rehabilitation Project was awarded to Pivetta 
Brothers Construction in the amount of $5,982,441.66 on March 6, 2018, following a 
competitive bidding process; and 

WHEREAS, construction of the project commenced April 2, 2018; and  

WHEREAS, a change order, approved by the City Council on February 19, 2019, increased the 
scope and cost of the project; and 

WHEREAS, the project was determined to have achieved Physical Completion by the Project 
Engineer on April 16, 2020; and  

WHERAS, the final amount paid to the Contractor is $6,502,381.49; and 

WHEREAS, all documentation required by the Contract and required by law has been 
furnished by the Contractor. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton does hereby declare 
that the Basin 3 Sewer Rehabilitation Project is accepted as final and complete. 

Passed by the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 21st day of July, 2020. 

 

                                                               ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Dorcy 
ATTEST:  
  
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault  



Basin 3 Sewer Rehabilitation Project
Final Acceptance

1



Goal: To reduce Inflow and Infiltration 
(I&I) in the Basin 3 Sewer area

Infiltration occurs when groundwater seeps into sewer pipes through 
cracks, leaky pipe joints, and/or deteriorated manholes.
Inflow is stormwater that enters the sewer system through catch basins, 
roof drains, basement sump pumps, or foundation drains that are illegally 
connected to the sewer.
When ground water and stormwater enter the City’s sewer collection 
systems, the piping system can surcharge/overtop and the wastewater 
treatment plant becomes less efficient and can fail leading to a permit 
violation.
2







Project Area Paving

5



Direct Appropriations 
Grants: $4,365,000

Department of Ecology 
Centennial Clean Water 
Grant: $1,974,000

Approved Contingency:
$200,000

Total Funding: $6,539,000
Total Construction Cost: $6,502,381.49

6



4th and Birch

Before

After

7



5th and Laurel

Before

After

8



7th from Alder

Before

After

9



7th from Birch
Before

After
During

10



Birch Looking East

Before

After

11



Birch Looking West

Before

After

12



This Project Completed:
 15,765 Linear Feet of Sewer Main (various sizes and types)

 189 Sewer Laterals (the pipe that connects a home’s or business’ plumbing to 
the City’s sanitary sewer system)

 5,095 Square Yards of Concrete for:
 33 Blocks of Sidewalk
 10,547 Linear Feet of Curb and Gutter
 36 ADA Ramps

 4,931 Tons of Asphalt for:
 36 Blocks, plus Northcliff from W. Birch to W. Poplar, of Roadway Overlay
 36 Blocks of Paved Parking Strips (1 Side = 1 Block)

13



Questions?

14



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F5) 

Touch Date: 06/11/2020  
Brief Date:    07/07/2020    
Action Date:  07/21/2020 

Department: Public Works 
  
Presented By: Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:   PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 

Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank 
Design Contract Amendment No. 1 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Resolution No. 1163-0620 
- Contract Amend. 1 with tracked 

changes 
- Contract Amend. 1 clean, with 

Exhibits  
- ILA with Squaxin Island Tribe  
- Figure showing potential location of 

reclaimed water tank and existing 
satellite water reclamation plant  

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

JOH 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

In August of 2018, after completing a formal solicitation process, Council approved a $57,100 Contract with 
Gray & Osborne Inc. (G&O) for the design of a new, larger, reclaimed water tank at the Satellite Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. In October of 2018, City staff had received word from the Squaxin Island Tribe Water 
Resources Biologist, expressing interest in applying for a grant through the Department of Ecology (ECY) and 
hoped to work with the City to brainstorm eligible projects. It was at that point, City staff requested Gray & 
Osborne put design efforts on hold in anticipation the new reclaimed water tank may be identified as an eligible 
project. 

 
Squaxin Island Tribe was awarded funds from the Department of Ecology’s Water Resources Streamflow 

Restoration Interim Implementation Grant and in August of 2019, Squaxin Island Tribe signed the funding 
agreement with the Department of Ecology. 

 
In March of 2020, Council adopted Resolution No. 1156-0320, approving an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with 

the Squaxin Island Tribe for planning and design of reclaimed water and wastewater conveyance facilities. The 
ILA defines two tasks to be completed and reimbursed by the Tribe, Task 1 being for the planning and design 
of an in-ground storage tank for reclaimed water (which will be achieved with this Contract Amendment), and 
Task 2 being for the planning and design to redirect sewer flows. 

 
With the ILA and funding assistance from the Tribe in place, staff is ready to have Gray & Osborne, Inc. 

resume design efforts of the reclaimed water tank, which brings forth Contract Amendment No. 1. This 
Amendment provides additional scope to better align the project with Task 1 identified in the ILA with the Tribe, 
$38,900 in additional funding to pay for the added scope, and extends the Contract end date to December 31, 
2021. The Exhibits attached to Contract Amendment No. 1 further defines the added Scope of Work, outlines 
the schedule of anticipated milestones, as well as provides a table explaining the additional task elements and 
the associated estimated costs. 

   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A   



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 
 
 
 

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
 

Contract Execution Expiration Amount New Total Contract Amount 
Original 9/4/2018 6/30/2019 $57,100 $57,100 
Proposed Amend. No 1 7/21/2020 12/31/2021 + $38,900 $96,000 

 
Only $2,831.09 of the original Contract has been expended to date. Payments made to the Consultant for 

design efforts will be submitted to Squaxin Island tribe for full reimbursement of all of the project costs, as stated 
in the ILA with the Tribe. 
 

PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

Staff requests the Council concur to place Resolution 1163-0620 and the Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank 
Design Contract Amendment No. 1 on the July 21, 2020 action agenda. 



RESOLUTION NO. 1163-0620 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH GRAY & OSBORNE, INC. FOR THE DESIGN OF THE SATELLITE 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT RECLAIMED TANK 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a Contract on September 4, 2018 with Gray & Osborne, 
Inc. for the design of a new reclaimed water tank at the Satellite Wastewater Treatment Plant; 
and 

WHEREAS, in October 2018, City staff placed design efforts on hold following discussions 
with the Squaxin Island Tribe and the possibility of the Tribe providing funding assistance for 
the project; and  

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, Council adopted Resolution No. 1156-0320 approving the 
Interlocal Agreement with Squaxin Island Tribe for planning and design of reclaimed water and 
wastewater conveyance facilities; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recognized the current Contract with Gray & Osborne, Inc. needs to be 
amended to provide additional scope, budget, and time, to better align the project with the 
tasks identified in the Interlocal Agreement with the Squaxin Island Tribe; and  

WHERAS, Gray & Osborne, Inc. has submitted Amendment No. 1 to the current contract to 
complete design efforts of the Satellite Wastewater Treatment Plant Reclaimed Tank for a new 
cost not to exceed $96,000. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton that the City Manager 
is authorized to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design Contract 
with Gray & Osborne, Inc. 

Passed by the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 21st day of July, 2020. 

 

                                                               ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Dorcy 
ATTEST:  
  
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault  



W:\Engineering\PROJECTS\000_Current Projects\Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank\Design\003_Contracts 

Amendment to Contract No.1 
 

 
Agency   City of Shelton 
Name of Project  Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Water Tank Design 
 
City of Shelton desires to amend the agreement entered into with Gray & Osborne, Inc. executed on 
September 4, 2018 and identified as Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Water Tank Design Services. 
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this amendment 
as follows: 
 
Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is 
hereby amended to read: 
The consultant shall provide detailed design and construction documents for the Satellite WWTP 
Reclaimed Water Tank, as described on Exhibits A and C attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
this reference as if fully set forth in this contract. In performing such services, the Consultant shall at all 
times comply with all federal, state, and local laws applicable to the performance of such services and 
the handling of any funds used in connection therewith; this includes applicable prevailing wage 
requirements. 
 
Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby 
amended to read: 
The City shall pay the Consultant for services rendered within thirty (30) days of receipt of an 
approvable invoice as well as the form titled, Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
The Consultant shall provide engineering services for this project at a cost not to exceed 
$57,10096,000, ($57,100 as shown in Exhibit A, Part 2, and $38,900 as shown in Exhibit C, Part 2). If 
additional task authorizations are issued, a new scope and budget will be requested. 
The Consultant shall complete and return Exhibit C, Tax Identification Number, to the City prior to or 
along with the first billing voucher submittal.  The Consultant is required to have a City Business license 
and no payment will be made until one is obtained. 
 
Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read: 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing on the date of the last 
signature affixed hereto and ending June 30, 2019December 31, 2021, unless sooner terminated 
under the provisions hereinafter specified. 
 
 

 
DATED this ____ day of _____________________, 2020 
 
 
___________________________________ _________________________________ 
Contractor Signature  Mayor Dorcy 
 
___________________________________ ATTEST:  
Print Name and Title   
  _________________________________ 
  City Clerk Nault 



W:\Engineering\PROJECTS\000_Current Projects\Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank\Design\003_Contracts 

Amendment to Contract No.1 
 

 
Agency   City of Shelton 
Name of Project  Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Water Tank Design 
 
City of Shelton desires to amend the agreement entered into with Gray & Osborne, Inc. executed on 
September 4, 2018 and identified as Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Water Tank Design Services. 
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this amendment 
as follows: 
 
Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is 
hereby amended to read: 
The consultant shall provide detailed design and construction documents for the Satellite WWTP 
Reclaimed Water Tank, as described on Exhibits A and C attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
this reference as if fully set forth in this contract. In performing such services, the Consultant shall at all 
times comply with all federal, state, and local laws applicable to the performance of such services and 
the handling of any funds used in connection therewith; this includes applicable prevailing wage 
requirements. 
 
Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby 
amended to read: 
The City shall pay the Consultant for services rendered within thirty (30) days of receipt of an 
approvable invoice as well as the form titled, Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
The Consultant shall provide engineering services for this project at a cost not to exceed $96,000, 
($57,100 as shown in Exhibit A, Part 2, and $38,900 as shown in Exhibit C, Part 2). If additional task 
authorizations are issued, a new scope and budget will be requested. 
The Consultant shall complete and return Exhibit C, Tax Identification Number, to the City prior to or 
along with the first billing voucher submittal.  The Consultant is required to have a City Business license 
and no payment will be made until one is obtained. 
 
Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read: 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing on the date of the last 
signature affixed hereto and ending December 31, 2021, unless sooner terminated under the 
provisions hereinafter specified. 
 
 

 
DATED this ____ day of _____________________, 2020 
 
 
___________________________________ _________________________________ 
Contractor Signature  Mayor Dorcy 
 
___________________________________ ATTEST:  
Print Name and Title   
  _________________________________ 
  City Clerk Nault 



G&O #18287.00 Page 1 of 2 

EXHIBIT C 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CITY OF SHELTON 

TASK 1 – ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 

RECLAIMED WATER TANK 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

 

The City plans to construct a new reclaimed water storage tank at the site of the Satellite 

Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) to allow it to supply peak reclaimed water 

demands, including augmenting the headwaters of Goldsborough Creek.  The City is 

seeking to construct a new storage tank with a volume of up to 750,000 gallons.  

Gray & Osborne, Inc. will prepare a predesign report to provide recommendations for the 

location, size, type, configuration, system hydraulics, and piping configuration for a new 

reclaimed water storage tank at the City’s Satellite WWTP site.  Gray & Osborne will 

prepare preliminary design documents, including preliminary engineering drawings and 

cost estimates for the reclaimed water storage tank.  The drawings will include survey of 

the Satellite WWTP site, site layout, plan and profile sheets, and mechanical drawings of 

pumps, piping, valves, and equipment. 

 

This scope is additive to the previously approved scope of work for Satellite WWTP 

Reclaimed Water Tank Design Services approved by the City in September 2018. 

 

PROJECT SCOPE 

 

The scope of work includes the following tasks. 

 

Prepare Predesign Report and Preliminary Design 

 

A. Establish projected capital and operating costs for new reclaimed water 

tank. 

 

B. Prepare draft Predesign Report, incorporating findings of Subtask A and 

Tasks 1, 2, and 3 from the previously approved scope of work. 

 

C. Review draft Predesign Report in a meeting with the City and Tribe. 

 

D. Complete topographical survey of preferred reclaimed water storage tank 

site at the Satellite WWTP. 

 

E. Complete Preliminary Design Drawings for the reclaimed water storage 

tank, including tank site plan and sections and mechanical drawings of 



G&O #18287.00 Page 2 of 2 

pumps, piping, valves, and equipment at the tank and Satellite WWTP 

site. 

 

F. Review final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings in a 

meeting with the City and Tribe. 

 

G. Submit final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings to 

Ecology. 

 

DELIVERABLES 

 

● Draft Predesign Report (three hard copies, one PDF copy) 

 

● Final Predesign Report with Preliminary Design Drawings (three hard 

copies, one PDF copy) 

 

BUDGET 

 

Based on the scope of work described above, the total estimated cost for completing the 

engineering services tasks is $38,900, as shown in the attached Exhibit C Part 2. 

 

SCHEDULE 

 

Milestone Date 
Notice to Proceed August 3, 2020 
Draft Predesign Report to City and Tribe December 10, 2020 
Meet with City and Tribe to Review Draft Report January 13, 2021 
Final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings to City 

and Tribe 
March 19, 2021 

Meet with City and Tribe to Review Final Predesign Report and 

Preliminary Design Drawings 
April 7, 2021 

Submit Final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings 

to Ecology 
May 21, 2021 

 



Principal

Hours

Project 

Manager

Hours

Project  

Engineer 

Hours

Structural 

Engineer

Hours

Electrical 

Engineer

Hours

AutoCAD/

GIS 

Technician

Hours

Professional 

Land 

Surveyor

Hours

Survey 

Crew 

(2 person)

Hours

1 Prepare Predesign Report 1 2 12 4 2

2 Preliminary Design Drawings 6 10 80 32 12 80 8 40

7 12 92 36 14 80 8 40

$175 $170 $135 $140 $165 $85 $145 $185

$1,225 $2,040 $12,420 $5,040 $2,310 $6,800 $1,160 $7,400

Total Fully Burdened Labor Cost: 38,395$         

Direct Non-Salary Cost:

Mileage & Expenses (mileage @ current IRS rate) 505$              

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: 38,900$         

* Actual labor cost will be based on each employee's actual rate.  Estimated rates are for determining total estimated cost only.  Fully burdened billing rates include direct salary cost, overhead, and profit.

SCOPE AND ESTIMATED COST

ENGINEERING SERVICES

EXHIBIT C PART 2

Fully Burdened Labor Cost:

Tasks

Hour Estimate:

Estimated Fully Burdened Billing Rate:*

City of Shelton - Task 1 - Additional Engineering Services for Reclaimed Water Tank

G&O #18287.00 Page 1 of 1

































































 

 

dmiller
Callout
POTENTIAL RECLAIMED WATER TANK LOCATION

dmiller
Oval

dmiller
Callout
EXISTING SATELLITE WATER RECLAMATION PLANT



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F6) 

Touch Date: 06/11/2020  
Brief Date:    07/07/2020    
Action Date:  07/21/2020 

Department: Public Works 
  
Presented By: Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:   PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 

Sewer Comp Pan Contract 
Amendment No. 1 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Resolution 1164-0620 
- Contract Amend. 1 with tracked 

changes 
- Contract Amend. 1 clean, with 

Exhibits   
- ILA with Squaxin Island Tribe 
- Figure showing potential north 

diversion area  

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

JOH 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

In February of 2019, following a formal solicitation process, Council approved a $320,000 Contract with Gray 
& Osborne, Inc. (G&O) for the completion of the Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update that will replace the 
current adopted comprehensive plan that was completed in 2013. The original Contract identified two tasks, 
Task 1 for the completion of the Sewer Comp Plan and related efforts, and Task 2 for the development of a 
Facilities Plan, which will identify what is needed at the current wastewater facilities to upgrade and to increase 
capacity and reliability. 

 
In March of 2020, Council adopted Resolution No. 1156-0320, approving an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with 

the Squaxin Island Tribe for planning and design of reclaimed water and wastewater conveyance facilities. The 
ILA defines two tasks to be completed and reimbursed by the Tribe, Task 1 being for the planning and design 
of an in-ground storage tank for reclaimed water (not applicable to this Contract), and Task 2 being for the 
planning and design to potentially redirect sewer flows from the main plant to the satellite (membrane filter) 
treatment plant. 

 
With the ILA and funding assistance from the Tribe in place, staff and the Consultant recognized a need to 

amend the current Contract. This Amendment provides additional scope to better align the project with Task 2 
elements identified in the ILA with the Tribe, $176,000 in additional funding by the Tribe to pay for the added 
scope, and extends the Contract end date with Gray and Osborne to December 31, 2021. 

 
Exhibit E of the Contract Amendment defines the Scope of Work included in the additional task, as well as 

outlines the schedule of anticipated milestones. Exhibit F of the Contract Amendment provides a table 
explaining the elements of the new task and the estimated costs associated.  

  
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A   
 
 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 
 
 
 
 
 

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
 

Contract Execution Expiration Contract Task 
# and Amount 

Related ILA 
Task # and 
Reimbursement  

Net Change 
This 
Amendment 

New Total 
Contract 
Amount 

Original 2/19/2019 6/1/2020 

Task 1 - 
$200,000 N/A 

N/A $320,000 Task 2 - 
$120,000 

ILA Task 2 – 
100% 

Reimbursement 

Proposed 
Amend. #1 07/21/2020 12/31/2021 Task 3 - 

$176,000 

ILA Task 2 – 
100% 

Reimbursement 
+ $176,000 $496,000 

 
Only efforts completed under tasks 2 and 3 of the Sewer Comp Plan Contract and Amendment are eligible to 
be submitted to Squaxin Island for reimbursement, which totals $296,000 of the new $496,000 Contract. The 
remaining $200,000 for Task 1 is City funded work approved in the 2019 Budget. Unexpended funds this year 
will carry over to the 2021 budget for completion of the project.  
 

PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff requests the Council concur to place Resolution No. 1164-0620 and Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update 
Contract Amendment No. 1 on the July 21, 2020 action agenda. 



RESOLUTION NO. 1164-0620 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH GRAY & OSBORNE, INC. FOR THE COMPLETION OF THE SEWER 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a Contract on February 19, 2019 with Gray & Osborne, 
Inc. for the completion of an update to the Sewer Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, City staff had discussions with the Squaxin Island Tribe regarding the possibility of 
the Tribe providing funding assistance for certain elements of the project; and  

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, Council adopted Resolution No. 1156-0320 approving the 
Interlocal Agreement with Squaxin Island Tribe for planning and design of reclaimed water and 
wastewater conveyance facilities; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recognized the current Contract with Gray & Osborne, Inc. needs to be 
amended to provide additional scope, budget, and time, to better align the project with the 
tasks identified in the Interlocal Agreement with the Squaxin Island Tribe; and  

WHERAS, Gray & Osborne, Inc. has submitted Amendment No. 1 to the current contract to 
complete the update to the Sewer Comprehensive Plan for a new cost not to exceed $496,000. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton that the City Manager 
is authorized to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update Contract with 
Gray & Osborne, Inc. 

Passed by the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 21st day of July, 2020. 

 

                                                               ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Dorcy 
ATTEST:  
  
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault  



W:\Public Works\Contracting and Procurement\Professional Services Contracts\2019\Sewer Comp Plan Update\004_Contract 

Amendment to Contract No.1 
 

 
Agency   City of Shelton 
Name of Project  2019 Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update 
 
City of Shelton desires to amend the agreement entered into with Gray & Osborne, Inc. executed on 
February 19, 2019 and identified as 2019 Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update. 
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this amendment 
as follows: 
 
Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is 
hereby amended to read: 
The Consultant shall provide an update to the Sewer System Comprehensive Plan, approvable by the 
Department of Ecology (DOE) in compliance with WAC 173-240, as well as the services as described 
in Exhibits A and E attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as if fully set forth in this 
Contract. Up to fifteen (15) hard copies and electronic copies (PDF and Word document) of the final 
draft will be provided to the City for use and for final approval by DOE.  In performing such services, the 
Consultant shall at all times comply with all federal, state, and local laws applicable to the performance 
of such services and the handling of any funds used in connection therewith; this includes applicable 
prevailing wage requirements. 
 
Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby 
amended to read: 
The City shall pay the Consultant for services rendered within thirty (30) days of receipt of an 
approvable invoice as well as the form titled, Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
The Consultant shall provide engineering services for this project at a cost not to exceed $320496,000 
($200,000 for Task 1 and $120,000 for Task 2, as identified in Exhibit B, and $176,000 for Task 3, as 
identified in Exhibit F). If additional task authorizations are issued, a new scope and budget will be 
requested. 
The Consultant shall complete and return Exhibit D, Tax Identification Number, to the City prior to or 
along with the first billing voucher submittal.  The Consultant is required to have a City Business license 
and no payment will be made until one is obtained. 
 
Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read: 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing on the date of the last 
signature affixed hereto and ending June 1, 2020December 31, 2021, unless sooner terminated under 
the provisions hereinafter specified.   
 

 
DATED this ____ day of _____________________, 2020 
 
 
___________________________________ _________________________________ 
Contractor Signature  Mayor Dorcy 
 
___________________________________ ATTEST:  
Print Name and Title   
  _________________________________ 
  City Clerk Nault 



W:\Public Works\Contracting and Procurement\Professional Services Contracts\2019\Sewer Comp Plan Update\004_Contract 

Amendment to Contract No.1 
 

 
Agency   City of Shelton 
Name of Project  2019 Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update 
 
City of Shelton desires to amend the agreement entered into with Gray & Osborne, Inc. executed on 
February 19, 2019 and identified as 2019 Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update. 
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this amendment 
as follows: 
 
Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is 
hereby amended to read: 
The Consultant shall provide an update to the Sewer System Comprehensive Plan, approvable by the 
Department of Ecology (DOE) in compliance with WAC 173-240, as well as the services as described 
in Exhibits A and E attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as if fully set forth in this 
Contract. Up to fifteen (15) hard copies and electronic copies (PDF and Word document) of the final 
draft will be provided to the City for use and for final approval by DOE.  In performing such services, the 
Consultant shall at all times comply with all federal, state, and local laws applicable to the performance 
of such services and the handling of any funds used in connection therewith; this includes applicable 
prevailing wage requirements. 
 
Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby 
amended to read: 
The City shall pay the Consultant for services rendered within thirty (30) days of receipt of an 
approvable invoice as well as the form titled, Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
The Consultant shall provide engineering services for this project at a cost not to exceed $496,000 
($200,000 for Task 1 and $120,000 for Task 2, as identified in Exhibit B, and $176,000 for Task 3, as 
identified in Exhibit F). If additional task authorizations are issued, a new scope and budget will be 
requested. 
The Consultant shall complete and return Exhibit D, Tax Identification Number, to the City prior to or 
along with the first billing voucher submittal.  The Consultant is required to have a City Business license 
and no payment will be made until one is obtained. 
 
Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read: 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing on the date of the last 
signature affixed hereto and ending December 31, 2021, unless sooner terminated under the provisions 
hereinafter specified.   
 

 
DATED this ____ day of _____________________, 2020 
 
 
___________________________________ _________________________________ 
Contractor Signature  Mayor Dorcy 
 
___________________________________ ATTEST:  
Print Name and Title   
  _________________________________ 
  City Clerk Nault 



G&O #19239.00 Page 1 of 3

EXHIBIT E

SCOPE OF WORK

CITY OF SHELTON

TASK 3 – ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR

REDIRECTION OF SEWER FLOWS

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

The City plans to complete a predesign report and preliminary design for redirection of

raw sewage produced in north Shelton neighborhoods (Mountain View area and possibly

new Shelton Hills, Goldsborough Heights, and DARCI development areas) from the

City’s main Fairmont Wastewater Treatment Plant (on Oakland Bay) to the City’s

Satellite Reclaimed Water Plant (RWP) near the airport.

A significant portion of the City’s wastewater in north Shelton is currently treated and

routed directly to Oakland Bay. Currently, that flow predominantly comes from the

Mountain View Basin; however, in the near future, additional north Shelton flow is

expected to come from the new Shelton Hills, Goldsborough Heights, and DARCI

development areas. Redirecting that water (or other from growth in the north Shelton

area) to the Satellite RWP would make it available high up in the Goldsborough

watershed as a benefit to aquifers and streams and wetlands.  (Preliminary estimates are

that 500,000 gallons per day of wastewater is produced in the Mountain View area.

Current and future wastewater flows will be further evaluated in the facility planning

process.)

This scope is additive to the previously approved scope of work for the 2019 Sewer

Comprehensive Plan Update approved by the City in February 2019.

PROJECT SCOPE

The scope of work includes the following tasks.

Prepare Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings

A. Complete a siting study for a new pump station to convey north Shelton

wastewater to the Satellite WRP.  Include preliminary geotechnical and

archaeological evaluation of the site.

B. Provide detailed evaluation of alternatives for a force main to convey

wastewater from north Shelton to the Satellite WRP and select a final

alternative.



G&O #19239.00 Page 2 of 3

C. Provide preliminary wetland and archaeological evaluation of conveyance

routes utilizing available mapping and data.  No field work will be

completed.

D. Finalize design criteria (flows and head) for the new pump station.

E. Develop conceptual layout for the pump station.

F. Establish projected capital and operating costs for the new pump station

and force main.

G. Prepare draft Predesign Report incorporating findings from Subtasks A

through F.

H. Review draft Predesign Report in a meeting with the City and Tribe.

I. Complete topographical survey of preferred pump station site and

preferred conveyance route.

J. Complete Preliminary Design Drawings for the pump station site and

conveyance line. Drawings will include survey of site and alignments,

pump station site plan and sections, plan and profile sheets of force main,

and mechanical drawings of pumps, piping, valves, and equipment at the

pump station site.

K. Review final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings in a

meeting with the City and Tribe.

L. Submit final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings to

Ecology.

DELIVERABLES

· Draft Predesign Report (three hard copies, one PDF copy)

· Final Predesign Report with Preliminary Design Drawings (three hard

copies, one PDF copy)

BUDGET

Based on the scope of work described above, the total estimated cost for completing the

Engineering Services tasks is $176,000 as shown in the attached Exhibit F.



G&O #19239.00 Page 3 of 3

SCHEDULE

Milestone Date

Notice to Proceed August 3, 2020

Geotechnical Evaluation Complete September 28, 2020

Draft Predesign Report to City and Tribe December 10, 2020

Meet with City and Tribe to Review Draft Report January 13, 2021

Final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings to City

and Tribe
March 19, 2021

Meet with City and Tribe to Review Final Predesign Report and

Preliminary Design Drawings
April 7, 2021

Submit Final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings

to Ecology
May 21, 2021



Principal

Hours

Project

Manager

Hours

Project

Engineer

Hours

Civil

Engineer

Hours

Structural

Engineer

Hours

Electrical

Engineer

Hours

AutoCAD/

GIS

Technician

Hours

Professional

Land

Surveyor

Hours

Survey

Crew

(2 person)

Hours

1 Prepare Predesign Report 16 32 96 120 14 12 64 8

2 Preliminary Design Drawings 24 80 136 160 40 40 288 24 80

40 112 232 280 54 52 352 32 80

$175 $170 $135 $120 $140 $165 $85 $145 $185

$7,000 $19,040 $31,320 $33,600 $7,560 $8,580 $29,920 $4,640 $14,800

Total Fully Burdened Labor Cost: 156,460$

Direct Non-Salary Cost:

Mileage & Expenses (mileage @ current IRS rate) 840$

Subconsultants:

Geotechnical (PanGEO, Inc.) 17,000$

Subconsultant Overhead (10%) 1,700$

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: 176,000$

*

EXHIBIT F

ENGINEERING SERVICES

SCOPE AND ESTIMATED COST

City of Shelton - Task 3 - Additional Engineering Services for Redirection of Sewer Flows

Tasks

Hour Estimate:

Estimated Fully Burdened Billing Rate:*

Fully Burdened Labor Cost:

Actual labor cost will be based on each employee's actual rate.  Estimated rates are for determining total estimated cost only.  Fully burdened billing rates include direct salary cost, overhead, and profit.

G&O #19239.00 Page 1 of 1

































































3PRW

I s l a n dL a k e

GooseLake

O a k l a n d
B a y

Potential North Diversion Area

15-F1

PORT

27-F1 16-F1

7K-F2

7K

7A

17-F1

14A-F1

5B

18-F1

3A

7H

WSP

19-F1

7G

6B

6K

1A

7E

7I

WCC

21-F1

13-F1

7K-F1

6I

20-F1

7K-F3

4A

7J

22-F1

MILL

5A

8D-F1

7A-F3

22-F2

7E-F1

7C
7D

6J

17-F2

6H

7L

12-F1

8A

6J-F2

7A-F2

5B-F1

10-F1

6C

25-F1
9A

23-F1

24-F1

8C

2G

8D

11-F1

3B

5C

6G
6D

26-F1

7L-F1

8B 8C-F1

2C

6A

2E

3C

7B

6I-F1
6J-F1

7A-F1

6E

2A2D
2B

CITY OF SHELTON

NORTH DIVERSION AREA

M:\Shelton\19239.00 Sewer Comp Plan\GIS\MXDs\Project MXDs\NorthDiversion.mxd

Legend
3PRW Water Reclamation Plant

Gravity Main
Washington Corrections Center
Washington State Patrol Academy
Port of Shelton Sanderson Field
Port of Shelton - John's Prarie
City of Shelton
UGA
UGA Expansion Area
Shelton Parcels

³
0 3,600 7,2001,800

Feet

Source: Mason County GIS, City of Dupont, Puget Sound LiDAR
Consortium

Sewer Basins
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23
24
25
26
27
MILL
PORT
WCC
WSP



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G1) 

Touch Date:   06/0/3/20 
Public Hearing:  06/16/20 
Action Date:    07/07/20 
   Reading of Resolution  

Department:  Public Works 
 
Presented By: Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  WSDOT 6-Year TIP 

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
-Resolution No. 1159-0620  
 with Spreadsheet Attachment 
-Informational Map 
-6-Year TIP Public Hearing Notice 
-TIP Definition Information Codes 
-6-Year TIP Presentation 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Per RCW 35.77.010, the purpose of the 6-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) is, “…to assure that 
each city and town shall perpetually have available advanced plans looking to the future for not less than six 
years as a guide in carrying out a coordinated transportation program”. 
The TIP is used by several state and federal agencies and serves multiple purposes. It is mainly for local 
agencies to prioritize their transportation projects anticipated to be done during the next six years, as well as for 
the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) to know what projects are anticipated, to list 
those projects that have federal and/or state funding secured, to identify those projects that are anticipating 
state or federal funding that is not yet secured, and to allow WSDOT to create a list of projects for the statewide 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). Federally funded projects must be incorporated into the STIP 
before money will be disbursed to a local agency. Washington State Law requires the annual adoption of the 6-
Year TIP take place after a public hearing, and to submit the adopted 6-year TIP to WSDOT within 30 days of 
its passage. 
 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
This is a requirement; there are no options or alternatives. 
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
N/A 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
The Public Hearing was held on June 16, 2020. Time was allowed for public comment to take place but there 
was no public testimony. Information for this can be obtained through the Public Works Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff requests a reading of Resolution No. 1159-0620 and: “I move to authorize the Mayor to sign Resolution 
Number 1159-0620, adopting the 6-Year Transportation Improvement Program for the years of 2021-2026”. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1159-0620 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON adopting the 
Comprehensive Six (6) Year Transportation Improvement Program for the City of Shelton for 
the years 2021 through 2026. 

 
WHEREAS, a study has been completed by the City Engineering Department and approved 

by the City Manager in which a Comprehensive Six (6) Year Transportation Improvement Program 
has been prepared for the six (6) year period 2021 through 2026, that shows the street locations, 
improvements that are to be made within the six (6) year period, and the estimated cost of each 
improvement;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Shelton held a public hearing on the 
Comprehensive Six (6) Year Transportation Improvement Program at 6:00 p.m. on the 16th day of 
June, 2020, via virtual platform due to Governor Inslee’s “Stay Home, Stay Healthy” order; and 
 
 WHEREAS, public comment received was considered and incorporated, if applicable, into 
the Plan prepared by the City of Shelton relative to the Comprehensive Six (6) Year Transportation 
Improvement Program for the City of Shelton; and, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, 
Washington, as follows: 
 

1. That the attached table be adopted as the Comprehensive Six (6) Year Transportation 
Improvement Program for the City of Shelton. 

 
2. That the table attached hereto is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of 

this Resolution. 
 

3. That this adoption of a Transportation Improvement Program is for the purpose of 
complying with the provisions of RCW 35.77, 36.81, 46.68 and 47.26 relating to the 
planning and financing of street and highway programs. 

 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on this 16th day of June 
2020. 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Dorcy 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault   
 



Shelton

Mason County #23

City No. 1165  MPO/RTPO: NON/PEN

Transportation Improvement Program - All Years/All Phase

From 2021-2026

Hearing: June 16, 2020  

      Adoption Date: July 7, 2020

Resolution No. 1159-0620

Amend Date:    

1 Western Gateway Phase A - Railroad Avenue 5640 7th Street
Pacific Court       

(City Limits)

Roadway improvements including pavement stabilization, replacement, 

and/or rehabilitation, storm drainage, illumination, sidewalk and ADA 

access 
P $3,547,930 $2,787,930 14 06 07 32 W S P G C T O CE YES

2
Access Shelton Phase III-B_Wallace-Kneeland Blvd 5439 / Shelton 

Springs Road 5432
Roundabout at Wallace-Kneeland and Shelton Springs P $3,022,326 $3,022,326 16 12 32 CE NO

3
Access Shelton Phase III-A_Wallace-Kneeland Blvd 5439 / N. 13th 

Intersection 5435 / Brockdale 5435
Roundabout at Wallace-Kneeland and North 13th Street P $2,736,766 $2,736,766 16 12 32 W S P G C T O CE YES

4 Western Gateway Phase B - 7th Street 5426 Alder Street Cota Street
Roadway improvements including paving, sidewalks and ADA access, 

intersection improvements including signalization
P $750,000 $75,000 17 05 07 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

5 North Shelton Interchange Upgrade SR101
Wallace-

Kneeland Blvd

Roadway improvements including widening, channelization and 

intersection improvement
P $3,200,000 $0 12 05 07 10 12 W S P G C T O EIS NO

6 Access Shelton Phase V, Brockdale Road 5435
Wallace-

Kneeland Blvd
N City Limits

Roadway improvements including pavement stabilization, storm 

drainage, landscaping, sidewalk and ADA access
P $1,500,000 $1,500,000 17 03 05 06 07 12 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

7 Western Gateway Phase C - West Downtown 7th to 12th Alder to Cota
Roadway improvements including paving, illumination, sidewalks and 

ADA access
P $2,000,000 $2,000,000 14 06 07 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

8 Olympic Highway North 5465 "K" Street
Wallace-

Kneeland Blvd
Roadway improvements including pavement grinding and overlay P $1,800,000 $1,800,000 14 03 07 W S P G C T O CE NO

9 Access Shelton Phase VI, Olympic Highway North 5465 "C" Street "K" Street
Roadway improvements including pavement grinding, overlay, 

illumination, sidewalk and ADA access upgrades
P $4,000,000 $4,000,000 14 03 06 07 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

10 Railroad Avenue 5640 1st Street 7th Street

Roadway improvements including pavement stabilization, replacement, 

and/or rehabilitation, ADA access upgrades and intersection 

improvements potentially including channelization and signalization
P $4,000,000 $400,000 14 07 12 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

11 Cota Street Front Street 7th Street
Roadway improvements including pavement, road base, storm drainage, 

illumination, channelization, landscaping, sidewalk and ADA access
P $2,000,000 $2,000,000 16 03 05 06 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

12 Turner Avenue 5434 1st Street Angleside Road
Roadway improvements including paving, channelization, storm drainage, 

illumination & pedestrian walkway
P $1,000,000 $1,000,000 17 06 07 12 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

13 Park Street 1st Street 7th Street
Roadway improvements including storm drainage, sidewalk and ADA 

access
P $2,000,000 $2,000,000 17 06 12 W S P G C T O CE NO

14 Angleside Road 5426 / 7th Street Cota Street Turner Avenue
Guardrail, pedestrian walkway, intersection reconstruction, ROW 

acquisition, pavement, road base, storm drainage, illumination
P $3,000,000 $3,000,000 17 03 06 07 12 32 W S P G C T O CE YES

15 Railroad Avenue 5640 City Limits
Hwy 101             

Park & Ride
Roadway improvements including overlay, sidewalk and ADA access P $2,000,000 $0 14 05 06 07 10 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

0 Non-Motorized Plan (Bicycle/Trail/Sidewalk) City Wide Development of Plan P $25,000 $25,000 00 32 CE NO

0 Signage Improvement Plan City Wide
Update/Upgrade regulatory and warning signage to current standards 

where applicable
P $150,000 $150,000 00 12 CE NO

0 Pavement Maintenance Program City Wide Chip Seal, Fog Seal, Overlay P $2,700,000 $2,700,000 00 07 CE NO

0 Guardrail Replacement City Wide Upgrade guardrails to current standards P $500,000 $500,000 00 12 CE NO

0 Pedestrian Crossing Improvements City Wide Rapid Flashing Beacons P $150,000 $150,000 00 32 CE NO

0 Sidewalk Replacement Program City Wide Sidewalks and ADA access P $180,000 $180,000 00 32 CE NO

$40,262,022 $30,027,449

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 N

u
m

b
er

Project Name N
ew

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 (
0

1
)

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 (

0
2

)

R
ec

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 (

0
3

)

M
aj

o
r 

W
id

en
in

g 
(0

4
)

B
ri

d
ge

 R
eh

ab
ili

ta
ti

o
n

 (
1

0
)

Sa
fe

ty
 (

1
2

)

W
at

er

Se
w

er

P
o

w
er

G
as

M
in

o
r 

B
ri

d
ge

 R
eh

ab
ili

ta
ti

o
n

 (
1

1
)

R
/W

 N
ee

d
ed

? 
 

(A
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 D

at
e)

C
ab

le
 T

V

Te
le

p
h

o
n

e

O
th

er

Utilities

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l C

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l (

1
3

)

Description

Project Limits

B
eg

in
n

in
g

En
d

B
ri

d
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
(0

9
)

N
ew

 B
ri

d
ge

 (
0

8
)

R
es

u
rf

ac
in

g 
(0

7
)

O
th

er
 E

n
h

an
ce

m
en

ts
 (

0
6

)

M
in

o
r 

W
id

en
in

g 
(0

5
)

Improvement Type

Fu
n

ct
io

n
al

 C
la

ss

Fu
n

d
in

g 
St

at
u

s

Fe
d

e
ra

l A
id

 N
u

m
b

er

Es
ti

m
at

e
d

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

st

Es
ti

m
at

e
d

 C
it

y 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

O
th

er

Report Dated:  06/04/2020
1 TIP 2021-2026



Shelton

Mason County #23

City No. 1165  MPO/RTPO: NON/PEN

Transportation Improvement Program - All Years/All Phase

From 2021-2026

Hearing: June 16, 2020  

      Adoption Date: July 7, 2020

Resolution No. 1159-0620

Amend Date:    

1 Western Gateway Phase A - Railroad Avenue 5640

2
Access Shelton Phase III-B_Wallace-Kneeland Blvd 5439 / Shelton 

Springs Road 5432

3
Access Shelton Phase III-A_Wallace-Kneeland Blvd 5439 / N. 13th 

Intersection 5435 / Brockdale 5435

4 Western Gateway Phase B - 7th Street 5426

5 North Shelton Interchange Upgrade

6 Access Shelton Phase V, Brockdale Road 5435

7 Western Gateway Phase C - West Downtown

8 Olympic Highway North 5465

9 Access Shelton Phase VI, Olympic Highway North 5465

10 Railroad Avenue 5640

11 Cota Street

12 Turner Avenue 5434

13 Park Street

14 Angleside Road 5426 / 7th Street

15 Railroad Avenue 5640

0 Non-Motorized Plan (Bicycle/Trail/Sidewalk)

0 Signage Improvement Plan

0 Pavement Maintenance Program

0 Guardrail Replacement

0 Pedestrian Crossing Improvements

0 Sidewalk Replacement Program

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 N

u
m

b
er

Project Name St
ar

t 
D

at
e

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 P

h
as

e 
C

o
st

O
u

ts
id

e 
Fu

n
d

in
g 

So
u

rc
e

O
u

ts
id

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 (
%

)

St
ar

t 
D

at
e

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 P

h
as

e 
C

o
st

O
u

ts
id

e 
Fu

n
d

in
g 

So
u

rc
e

O
u

ts
id

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 (
%

)

St
ar

t 
D

at
e

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 P

h
as

e 
C

o
st

O
u

ts
id

e 
Fu

n
d

in
g 

So
u

rc
e

O
u

ts
id

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 (
%

)

2020 $409,377 2020 2021 $3,138,553 TIB 90% $409 $3,138.6

2020 $202,166 WSDOT 86.5% 2022 $2,820,160 WSDOT 86.5% $200 $2,820

2021 $202,166 2022 $65,000 2023 $2,469,600 $202 $65 $2,469

2022 $112,500 2021 $637,500 TIB 90% $56 $638

2022 $480,000 2021 $2,720,000 TIP/Private 100% $480 $2,720

2023 $225,000 2021 $1,275,000 TIB 90% $225 $1,275

2023 $300,000 2022 $1,700,000 SRTS 85% $300 $1,700

2024 $270,000 2023 $1,530,000 TIB 90% $270 $1,530

2024 $600,000 2023 $3,400,000 TIB 90% $600 $3,400

2024 $600,000 2025 $3,400,000 TIB 90% $600 $3,400

2025 $300,000 2025 $1,700,000 TIB 90% $300 $1,700

2026 $150,000 2025 $850,000 $150 $850

2026 $300,000 2025 $1,700,000 TIB 90% $300 $1,700

2026 $450,000 2024 $75,000 2025 $2,475,000 TIB 90% $525 $2,475

2026 $300,000 2025 $1,700,000 County 90% $300 $1,700

2021 $60,000 $60

2021 $150,000 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25

2020 $2,700,000 $400 $400 $400 $400 $400 $400

2021 $500,000 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83

2021 $150,000 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25 $25

2021 $180,000 $30 $30 $30 $30 $30 $30

Project Phase

Preliminary Engineering (Planning) Right-of Way (Equip Purchase) Construction

Expenditure Schedule  ($1,000)

Ye
ar

 1
 (

2
0

2
1

)

Ye
ar

 2
 (

2
0

2
2

)

Ye
ar

 3
 (

2
0

2
3

)

Ye
ar

 4
 (

2
0

2
4

)

Ye
ar

 5
 (

2
0

2
5

)

Ye
ar

 6
 (

2
0

2
6

)

Report Dated:  06/04/2020
2 TIP 2021-2026





CITY OF SHELTON 
525 WEST COTA STREET 
SHELTON, WASHINGTON 

(360) 426-4491 
 
 

NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, is 
declaring its intention to hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, June 16, 2020, at 6:00 p.m. to hear 
testimony regarding the proposed Six (6) Year Transportation Improvement Program for the City 
of Shelton.  Due to Governor Inslee’s “Stay Home, Stay Healthy” order, the Council will meet 
on a virtual platform to conduct this Public Hearing and further Council business. The public will 
have an opportunity to view the virtual Public Hearing at www.masonwebtv.com. All persons 
who desire to give testimony regarding the proposed program can provide comments via email to 
Jeff.Niten@SheltonWa.Gov or via phone at (360) 432-5105.  Copies of the proposed plan are 
available from the Public Works Department. 
 
 

http://www.masonwebtv.com/
mailto:Jeff.Niten@SheltonWa.Gov


Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
Definition of Information Codes 

 
The following descriptive codes are used in the TIP program provided by WSDOT.  The following is a list of the 
meaning of various codes used in the TIP table. 
 
Functional Classification 

 Urban (Over 5000 population) 
 00 – No Classification 
 11 – Interstate 
 12 – Freeways & Expressways 
 14 – Other Principal Arterials 
 16 – Minor Arterial 
 17 – Collector 
 19 – Local Access 
 
 
Improvement Type Codes 

 01 – New Construction on New Alignment  08 – New Bridge Construction 
 02 – Relocation 09 – Bridge Replacement  
 03 – Reconstruction  10 – Bridge Rehabilitation 
 04 – Major Widening  11 – Minor Bridge Rehabilitation 
 05 – Minor Widening  12 – Safety/ Traffic Operation/TSM 
 06 – Other Enhancements  13 – Environmentally Related 
 07 – Resurfacing  32 – Non Motor Vehicle Project 

 
 

Funding Status 

S - Project is selected by the appropriate selection body and funding has been secured by the lead agency. 
P - Project is subject to selection by an agency other than the lead and is listed for planning purposes. (Funding 
has not been determined.) 
 
 
Utility Codes 

 W – Water 
 S – Sewer (other than agency-owned) 
 P – Power 
 G – Gas  
 C – Cable TV   
 T – Telephone      
 O – Other      
 
 
Environmental Data Type 

 EIS – Environmental Impact Statement 
 EA – Environmental Assessment 
 CE – Categorical Exclusion  

 



June 16, 2020 



 Opportunity for Council review/discussion
 Ability to compete for and obtain State and Federal grants
 Inclusion does not guarantee funding or completion 



 RAILROAD AVE-7TH STREET TO PACIFIC COURT 
 ROUNDABOUT @ WALLACE-KNEELAND AND 

SHELTON SPRINGS ROAD
 ROUNDABOUT @ WALLACE-KNEELAND AND NORTH 

13TH



PROPOSED  IMPROVEMENTSEXISTING CONDITIONS



PROPOSED  BUS PULLOUT WITH SHELTER



EXISTING CONDITIONS



PROPOSED  IMPROVEMENTS



PROPOSED  IMPROVEMENTSEXISTING CONDITIONS



EXISTING CONDITIONS



PROPOSED  IMPROVEMENTS





 June 16-Public Hearing and 1st Reading of Resolution 1159 
 July 7- Action Agenda





Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G2) 

Touch Date: 06/18/20 
Action Date:  07/07/20 
 
   Reading of Resolution 

Department:  Public Works 
 
Presented By: Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
MTA Parking Lot Change Order No. 1 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Resolution 1165-0620 
- Change Order No. 1   
- ILA with Mason Transit Authority 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

KWG for 
JOH  

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
In 2014, the City collaborated with Mason Transit Authority (MTA) and Mason Conservation District (MCD) to 
seek funding from the Washington State Department of Ecology’s Stormwater Financial Assistance Program. 
Grant funding was requested and in 2016 $302,500 in grant funds were awarded to the City for a parking lot 
retrofit project in the 600 block of Railroad Avenue. 
Mason Conservation District commenced design of the project and initiated soil testing in the project area. 
During the design process it was determined the project area contained contaminated soils. The Dept. of 
Ecology worked with Mason Conservation District to develop an approach to clean up the contaminated soils 
in order to proceed with the parking lot project, so that cleanup and construction can proceed simultaneously.  
Mason Conservation District completed design early Fall 2019 and the project was advertised for bid in 
November 2019. Thirteen bids were received and opened at the December 4th bid opening and on January 21, 
2020, RW Scott Construction was awarded the project as the lowest and responsible bid of $308,641.12. 
Construction commenced with removal of the contaminated soils. Depending on the amount of contamination, 
disposal of the on-site contaminated soils was split between the Dickson Co.-Waller Road facility in Pierce 
County and the Waste Management Inc. facility in Bremerton. The cost of hauling to these two specialized 
facilities is significantly more than anticipated and requires a change in contract. 
Change Order Number 1 is the cost for removal and disposal of contaminated soils from the project site. The 
change order will be signed by MTA, the Contractor, and the Project Engineer, prior to the City’s final 
execution. Resolution No. 1165-0620 authorizes the City Manager to sign the change order on behalf of the 
City, once all other signatures have been received. 

   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  

N/A 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  

This change order increases the Contract by an estimated $81,244; the final amount paid will be based on 
actual quantities. There is no financial impact to the City as any funds and/or staffing costs not reimbursed by 
the Ecology grant will be billed to and reimbursed by Mason Transit Authority, per the Interlocal Agreement 
entered into with MTA in February 2016. To note, Mason Transit Authority is involved in all Change Orders 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

and is required to sign off on each one to authorize the activity. Since MTA is reimbursing the City for all 
costs, this ensures us they are aware of the funds required to complete the project.   

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
  Information for this can be obtained through the Public Works Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
 Staff recommends: “I move to adopt Resolution 1165-0620, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 

sign Change Order No. 1 to the Construction Contract with R.W. Scott Construction for the Mason Transit 
Authority Parking Lot Project”. 



RESOLUTION NO. 1165-0620 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

WITH R.W. SCOTT CONSTRUCTION FOR THE COMPLETION OF THE MASON TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY PARKING LOT RETROFIT PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a Contract on January 21, 2020 with R.W. Scott 
Construction for the completion of the Mason Transit Authority Parking Lot Retrofit Project; 
and 

WHEREAS, soil testing of the project area taken during the design phase showed the area to 
have contaminated soils; and 

WHEREAS, additional soil sampling taken during construction has provided information on 
the levels of contamination; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor and Project Engineers have had difficulty locating a facility to 
accept the excavated soils being removed from the project site; and  

WHEREAS, there are only two facilities within a reasonable distance willing to accept the 
contaminated soils but at a much higher cost than anticipated; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor and Project Engineer have provided Change Order No. 1, 
increasing the Contract by an estimated $71,819 to cover the additional costs of hauling the 
excavated soils to the facilities.  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton that the City Manager 
is authorized to sign Change Order No. 1 to the Construction Contract with R.W. Scott 
Construction for the Mason Transit Authority Parking Lot Retrofit Project. 

Passed by the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 7th day of July, 2020. 

 

                                                               ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Dorcy 
ATTEST:  
  
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault  



CHANGE ORDER
Project Engineer: Phone Number:

Contract Title: Change Order Number:

Prime Contractor: Change Order Date:

Change Description:

Change Description: Based on soil sampling results, disposal of the on-site contaminated soils is split

Item Unit Quant. Unit Price Total Amt Quant. Unit Price Total Amt

A-5 CY    980.0  $      24.50  $    24,010    220.0  $      24.50  $      5,390 

A-20 CY          -    $           -    $           -      638.2  $    125.00  $    79,775 

A-21 CY          -    $           -    $           -      140.0  $    195.00  $    27,300 

B-11 CY    980.0  $      10.00  $      9,800    158.9  $      10.00  $      1,589 

 $    33,810  $  114,054 

Original Contract Amount Current Contract Amount Est. Net Change this C.O.

Prime Contractor Signature Date:

Project Engineer Recommendation Date:

Mason Transit Authority Approval Date:

City of Shelton Approval Date:

MTA shall be responsible for all change order costs per Part 1 of Intergovernmental Agreement between the City 
of Shelton and the Mason Transit Authority, dated February, 2016.
This document will become a supplement to the Contract and all provisions in the Contract will apply hereto.  The 
Contractor acknowledges and agrees that by executing this change order he foregoes all rights and privileges of 
acquiring any additional compensation for any known or unknown claims of any type or nature, to include but not 
be limited to, any additional work, delays, extended office overhead, design omissions, changed site conditions, or 
any oral directions as of the date of the execution of this change order.

All works, materials and measurements to be in accordance with the provisions of the Contract for the 
type of construction invovled unless stated otherwise in this document.

Est. Revised Contract Amount

$283,677.50 $283,677.50 $80,244.00 $363,921.50

Description
Excavation & Disposal of 
Site Soils
Excavation & Disposal of 
Site Soils at Dickson
Excavation & Disposal of 
Site Soils at Waste Mgmt.

Excavated Soil Stockpiling

Items A-20 and A-21 are new bid items created with this change order.  The increase in contract cost related to 
contaminated soils is $80,244 ($114,054 less $33,810).  Revised bid items are subject to documentation of actual 
quantities.  Contract time is increased by 3 working days as part of this change order.

Handling and Hauling of Contaminated Soils

Ordered by Engineer under the terms of Section 1-04.4 of the Standard Specification or the RFP
Change proposed by Contractor

between the Dickson Co. - Waller Road facility in Tacoma and the Waste Mgmt Inc. facility in Bremerton.

Contract Bid Items Revised Bid Items

Dominic Miller, P.E. 360-292-7481

City of Shelton - MTA Parking Lot Retrofits 1

R.W. Scott Construction Company; (253) 351-0001                                         
4005 West Valley Hwy STE A; Auburn, WA  98001 June 30, 2020











Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G3) 

Touch Date: 06/29/20 
Brief Date:       07/07/20 
Action Date:  07/07/20 

Department:  Executive 
 
Presented By: Jeff Niten 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Coronavirus Relief Funds for Local      
  Government 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  Dept. of Commerce Interagency     
  Agreement 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
JN      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

The CARES Act approved by the Federal Government earlier this year provided for direct funding to States 
and Local Governments with populations over 500,000 people.  Washington State then shares the funding 
they received with local municipal governments based on a formula developed by the U.S. Department of the 
Treasury.  Shelton’s share of the funding is $306,600.00. 
 
Guidance issued by the U.S. Department of the Treasury on April 22nd and May 28th and includes several 
different categories including “…Expenses to improve telework capabilities for public employees to enable 
compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions.” and “…payroll expenses for public safety, public 
health, health care, human services, and similar employees whose services are substantially dedicated to 
mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency.”  The city is exploring every avenue for 
use of these allocated funds. 
 
In order to request reimbursement for expenses the attached contract must be executed between the 
Department of Commerce and the City of Shelton.  The contract is attached to this staff report.  Funds under 
the contract are made available and are subject to Section 601(a) of the Social Security Act, as amended by 
section 5001 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), and Title V and VI of 
the CARES Act.  The city shall receive reimbursement for allowable expenses as identified in the Scope of 
Work or as authorized in advance by COMMERCE as reimbursable.  Don Kuismi, Finance Specialist with the 
City of Shelton, will be the authorized contact for this agreement and is authorized to request reimbursements 
from Department of Commerce. 

   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  

N/A 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  

The funds made available under the CARES Act will be accounted for as revenue in the 2020 City of Shelton 
financials. 

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the City Clerk.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

Staff recommends: “I move to approve the Interagency Agreement with the Washington Department of 
Commerce by authorizing the City Manager to sign the attached agreement”. 



  

 
 
Interagency Agreement with 
 

City of Shelton 
 

 
     through 

 
the Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local Governments 

 
 
 
For 

Costs incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to 
the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) during the period of 
March 1, 2020 thru October 31, 2020. 

 
 
 
Start date:                  March 1, 2020 
 
 



 

 ii 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

 
Special Terms and Conditions 

1. Authority…………………………………………………………………………………..1 
2. Acknowledgement of Federal Funding………………………………………………..1 
3. Contract Management ........................................................................................... 1 
4. Compensation ........................................................................................................ 1 
5. Expenses…………………………………………………………………………………1 
6. Indirect Costs…………………………………………………………………………….1 
7. Billing Procedures and Payment ............................................................................ 1 
8. Audit……………………………………………………………………………………….2 
9. Debarment…………………………….………………………………………………….3 

10. Laws ....................................................................................................................... 3 
11. Order of Precedence .............................................................................................. 4 

 

General Terms and Conditions 
1. Definitions .............................................................................................................. 5 
2. All Writings Contained Herein ................................................................................ 5 
3. Amendments .......................................................................................................... 5 
4. Assignment ............................................................................................................ 5 
5. Confidentiality and Safeguarding of Information.................................................... 5 
6. Copyright................................................................................................................ 6 
7. Disputes ................................................................................................................. 6 
8. Governing Law and Venue .................................................................................... 6 
9. Indemnification ....................................................................................................... 7 

10. Licensing, Accreditation and Registration ............................................................. 7 
11. Recapture .............................................................................................................. 7 
12. Records Maintenance ............................................................................................ 7 
13. Savings .................................................................................................................. 7 
14. Severability ............................................................................................................ 7 
15. Subcontracting ....................................................................................................... 7 
16. Survival .................................................................................................................. 8 
17. Termination for Cause ........................................................................................... 8 
18. Termination for Convenience................................................................................. 8 
19. Termination Procedures ........................................................................................ 8 
20. Waiver .................................................................................................................... 9 

 

Attachment A, Scope of Work  ................................................................................................... 10 
Attachment B, Budget & Invoicing ............................................................................................. 12 
Attachment C, A-19 Certification ................................................................................................ 13 
Attachment D, A-19 Activity Report ........................................................................................... 15 
 
 



FACE SHEET 

 iii 

Contract Number: 20-6541C-318  

Washington State Department of Commerce 

Local Government Division 

Community Capital Facilities Unit 

Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local Governments 

 

1. Contractor 2. Contractor Doing Business As (optional) 

City of Shelton 

525 West Cota Street 

Shelton, Washington 98584-2239 

 

 

3. Contractor Representative 4. COMMERCE Representative 

Don Kuismi 

Finance Specialist  

(360) 432-5155 

Don.Kuismi@Sheltonwa.gov 

 

Chuck Hunter 

Project Manager 

(360) 764-3312 

Fax 360-586-5880 

chuck.hunter@commerce.wa.gov 

P.O. Box 42525 

1011 Plum Street SE 

Olympia, WA 98504-2525 

5. Contract Amount 6. Funding Source 7. Start Date 8. End Date 

$306,600.00 

 

Federal: X    State:     Other:     N/A:  March 1, 2020 October 31, 2020 

9. Federal Funds (as applicable) 

$306,600.00 

 

Federal Agency:                       CFDA Number: 

US Dept. of the Treasury                21.019 

      Indirect Rate (if applicable): 

              10.00%   

10. Tax ID # 11. SWV # 12. UBI # 13. DUNS # 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

 
SWV0013140-00 

 

252000085 

 

021830666 

 

14. Contract Purpose 

To provide funds for costs incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) 

during the period of March 1, 2020 thru October 31, 2020. Final invoices must be received by November 15, 2020. 

15. Signing Statement 

COMMERCE, defined as the Department of Commerce, and the Contractor, as defined above, acknowledge and accept the terms of 

this Contract and Attachments and have executed this Contract on the date below and warrant they are authorized to bind their 

respective agencies. The rights and obligations of both parties to this Contract are governed by this Contract and the following 

documents hereby incorporated by reference: Attachment “A” – Scope of Work, Attachment “B” – Budget & Invoicing, Attachment 

“C” – A-19 Certification, Attachment “D” – A-19 Activity Report 

FOR CONTRACTOR FOR COMMERCE 

 

 

  

Jeff Niten, City Manager 

 

 

  

Date 

 

 

 

  

Mark K. Barkley, Assistant Director, Local Government Division 

 

 

  

Date 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY BY ASSISTANT 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 05-01-2020. 

APPROVAL ON FILE.  

 
 



SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 1 

1. AUTHORITY 
 
COMMERCE and Contractor enter into this Contract pursuant to the authority granted by the Interlocal 
Cooperation Act, Chapter 39.34 RCW. 
 

2. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF FEDERAL FUNDS  
 
Funds under the Contract are made available and are subject to Section 601(a) of the Social Security 
Act, as amended by section 5001 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES 
Act), and Title V and VI of the CARES Act. 

The Contractor agrees that any publications (written, visual, or sound) but excluding press releases, 
newsletters, and issue analyses, issued by the Contractor describing programs or projects funded in whole 
or in part with federal funds under this Contract, shall contain the following statements:  

“This project was supported by a grant awarded by US Department of the Treasury.  Points of 
view in this document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position 
or policies of the US Department of the Treasury. Grant funds are administered by the Local 
Government Coronavirus Relief Fund thru the Washington State Department of Commerce.”   

3. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 

The Representative for each of the parties shall be responsible for and shall be the contact person for all 
communications and billings regarding the performance of this Contract.  

The Representative for COMMERCE and their contact information are identified on the Face Sheet of 
this Contract. 

The Representative for the Contractor and their contact information are identified on the Face Sheet of 
this Contract. 

4. COMPENSATION 

COMMERCE shall pay an amount not to exceed the contract amount listed on the Face Sheet for the 
performance of all things necessary for or incidental to the performance of work under this Contract as set 
forth in the Scope of Work (Attachment A).  

5. EXPENSES 

Contractor shall receive reimbursement for allowable expenses as identified in the Scope of Work 
(Attachment A) or as authorized in advance by COMMERCE as reimbursable.   

Travel expenses may include airfare (economy or coach class only), other transportation expenses, and 
lodging and subsistence necessary during periods of required travel. Contractor shall receive compensation 
for travel expenses at current state travel reimbursement rates.  

6. INDIRECT COSTS 

Contractor shall provide their indirect cost rate that has been negotiated between their entity and the federal 
government. If no such rate exists a de minimis indirect cost rate of 10% of modified total direct costs 
(MTDC) will be used. 

7. BILLING PROCEDURES AND PAYMENT 

COMMERCE shall reimburse the Contractor for eligible Project expenditures, up to the maximum payable 
under this Contract.  When requesting reimbursement for expenditures made, Contractor shall submit all 
Invoice Vouchers and any required documentation electronically through COMMERCE’s Contracts 
Management System (CMS), which is available through the Secure Access Washington (SAW) portal. If 
the Contractor has constraints preventing access to COMMERCE’s online A-19 portal, a hard copy A-19 
form may be provided by the COMMERCE Project Manager upon request.   
 



SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 2 

The voucher must be certified by an official of the Contractor with authority to bind the Contractor.  The final 
voucher shall be submitted to COMMERCE no later than November 15, 2020.   
 
COMMERCE will pay Contractor upon acceptance of services provided and receipt of properly completed 
invoices, which shall be submitted to the Representative for COMMERCE not more often than monthly.  

The invoices shall describe and document, to COMMERCE's satisfaction, reimbursable expenditures as 
set forth under the Scope of Work (Attachment A) and Budget & Invoicing (Attachment B). The invoice shall 
include the Contract Number as stated on the Face Sheet.  

Each voucher must be accompanied by an A-19 Certification (Attachment C) and A-19 Activity Report 
(Attachment D). The A-19 Certification must be certified by an authorized party of the Contractor to certify 
and attest all expenditures submitted on the voucher are in compliance with the United States Treasury 
Coronavirus Relief Fund (“Fund”) Guidance for State, Territorial, Local, and Tribal Governments:  
 
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Guidance-for-State-Territorial-Local-
and-Tribal-Governments.pdf  

 
The A-19 Activity Report must be submitted which describes, in Excel spreadsheet and narrative form, a 
detailed breakdown of the expenditures within each applicable budget sub-category identified in the 
voucher, as well as a report of expenditures to date.  COMMERCE will not release payment for any 
reimbursement request received unless and until the A-19 Certification and A-19 Activity Report is received.  
After approving the Invoice Voucher, A-19 Certification and Activity Report, COMMERCE shall promptly 
remit a warrant to the Contractor. 
 
Payment shall be considered timely if made by COMMERCE within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt 
of properly completed invoices. Payment shall be sent to the address designated by the Contractor. 

COMMERCE may, in its sole discretion, terminate the Contract or withhold payments claimed by the 
Contractor for services rendered if the Contractor fails to satisfactorily comply with any term or condition of 
this Contract.   

No payments in advance or in anticipation of services or supplies to be provided under this Agreement shall 
be made by COMMERCE. 

Duplication of Billed Costs 

The Contractor shall not bill COMMERCE for services performed under this Agreement, and COMMERCE 
shall not pay the Contractor, if the Contractor is entitled to payment or has been or will be paid by any other 
source, including grants, for that service. 

Disallowed Costs 

The Contractor is responsible for any audit exceptions or disallowed costs incurred by its own organization 
or that of its subcontractors. 

Should the Contractor be found to spent funds inconsistent with federal laws, rules, guidelines, or otherwise 
inappropriately, it is the responsibility of the Contractor to reimburse Commerce for any amount spent on 
disallowed costs. 

8. AUDIT 
Contractor shall maintain internal controls providing reasonable assurance it is managing federal awards 
in compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a 
material effect on each of its federal programs; and prepare appropriate financial statements, including a 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 

If the Contractor is a subrecipient and expends $750,000 or more in federal awards from any and/or all 
sources in any fiscal year, the Contractor shall procure and pay for a single audit or a program-specific 
audit for that fiscal year. Upon completion of each audit, the Contractor shall: 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Guidance-for-State-Territorial-Local-and-Tribal-Governments.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Guidance-for-State-Territorial-Local-and-Tribal-Governments.pdf


SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 3 

A. Submit to COMMERCE the reporting package specified in OMB Super Circular 2 CFR 200.501, 
reports required by the program-specific audit guide (if applicable), and a copy of any management 
letters issued by the auditor. 

B. Submit to COMMERCE follow-up and developed corrective action plans for all audit findings. 

If the Contractor is a subrecipient and expends less than $750,000 in federal awards from any and/or all 
sources in any fiscal year, the Contractor shall notify COMMERCE they did not meet the single audit 
requirement. 

The Contractor shall send all single audit documentation to auditreview@commerce.wa.gov.  

9. DEBARMENT 
A. Contractor, defined as the primary participant and it principals, certifies by signing these General Terms 

and Conditions that to the best of its knowledge and belief that they: 

i. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency. 

ii. Have not within a three-year period preceding this Contract, been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection 
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public or private agreement or transaction, 
violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, receiving 
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice; 

iii. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 
(1)(b) of federal Executive Order 12549; and 

iv. Have not within a three-year period preceding the signing of this Contract had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause of default. 

B. Where the Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Contract, the Contractor shall 
attach an explanation to this Contract. 

C. The Contractor agrees by signing this Contract that it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by COMMERCE. 

D. The Contractor further agrees by signing this Contract that it will include the clause titled “Certification 
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered 
Transaction,” as follows, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions: 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
i. The lower tier Contractor certifies, by signing this Contract that neither it nor its principals is 

presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 

ii. Where the lower tier Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Contract, 
such contractor shall attach an explanation to this Contract. 

E. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, 
person, primary covered transaction, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this section, 
have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive 
Order 12549. You may contact COMMERCE for assistance in obtaining a copy of these regulations.  

10. LAWS 

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, regulations, and policies of local, 
state, and federal governments, as now or hereafter amended, including, but not limited to: 

mailto:auditreview@commerce.wa.gov


SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 4 

United States Laws, Regulations and Circulars (Federal) 
Contractor shall comply with Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirement 
for Federal Award, 2 CFR 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements. 

Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, including any future 
amendments to 2 CFR Part 200, and any successor or replacement Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Circular or regulation. 

Contractor shall comply with Omnibus Crime Control and Safe streets Act of 1968, Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and The 
Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations, 28 C.F.R. Part 42, Subparts C.D.E. and G, and 28 
C.F.R. Part 35 and 39. 

11. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 

In the event of an inconsistency in this Contract, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence 
in the following order:  

 Applicable federal and state of Washington statutes and regulations 

 Special Terms and Conditions  

 General Terms and Conditions 

 Attachment A – Scope of Work 

 Attachment B – Budget & Invoicing 

 Attachment C – A-19 Certification 

 Attachment D – A-19 Activity Report 

 



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 5 

1. DEFINITIONS 

As used throughout this Contract, the following terms shall have the meaning set forth below: 

A. “Authorized Representative” shall mean the Director and/or the designee authorized in writing to 
act on the Director’s behalf. 

B. “COMMERCE” shall mean the Department of Commerce. 

C. “Contract” or “Agreement” means the entire written agreement between COMMERCE and the 
Contractor, including any attachments, documents, or materials incorporated by reference. E-mail 
or facsimile transmission of a signed copy of this contract shall be the same as delivery of an 
original. 

D. "Contractor" shall mean the entity identified on the face sheet performing service(s) under this 
Contract, and shall include all employees and agents of the Contractor. 

E. “Personal Information” shall mean information identifiable to any person, including, but not limited 
to, information that relates to a person’s name, health, finances, education, business, use or receipt 
of governmental services or other activities, addresses, telephone numbers, social security 
numbers, driver license numbers, other identifying numbers, and any financial identifiers. 

F. ”State” shall mean the state of Washington. 

G. "Subcontractor" shall mean one not in the employment of the Contractor, who is performing all or 
part of those services under this Contract under a separate contract with the Contractor. The terms 
“subcontractor” and “subcontractors” mean subcontractor(s) in any tier. 

2. ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN 

This Contract contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No other 
understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Contract shall be deemed to 
exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 

3. AMENDMENTS 

This Contract may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties. Such amendments shall not be 
binding unless they are in writing and signed by personnel authorized to bind each of the parties. 

4. ASSIGNMENT 

Neither this Contract, work thereunder, nor any claim arising under this Contract, shall be transferred 
or assigned by the Contractor without prior written consent of COMMERCE. 

5. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SAFEGUARDING OF INFORMATION 
A.  “Confidential Information” as used in this section includes:  

i. All material provided to the Contractor by COMMERCE that is designated as “confidential” by 
COMMERCE; 

ii. All material produced by the Contractor that is designated as “confidential” by COMMERCE; 
and 

iii. All personal information in the possession of the Contractor that may not be disclosed under 
state or federal law.  

B. The Contractor shall comply with all state and federal laws related to the use, sharing, transfer, 
sale, or disclosure of Confidential Information. The Contractor shall use Confidential Information 
solely for the purposes of this Contract and shall not use, share, transfer, sell or disclose any 
Confidential Information to any third party except with the prior written consent of COMMERCE or 
as may be required by law. The Contractor shall take all necessary steps to assure that Confidential 
Information is safeguarded to prevent unauthorized use, sharing, transfer, sale or disclosure of 
Confidential Information or violation of any state or federal laws related thereto. Upon request, the 
Contractor shall provide COMMERCE with its policies and procedures on confidentiality.  



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 6 

COMMERCE may require changes to such policies and procedures as they apply to this Contract 
whenever COMMERCE reasonably determines that changes are necessary to prevent 
unauthorized disclosures. The Contractor shall make the changes within the time period specified 
by COMMERCE. Upon request, the Contractor shall immediately return to COMMERCE any 
Confidential Information that COMMERCE reasonably determines has not been adequately 
protected by the Contractor against unauthorized disclosure.  

C. Unauthorized Use or Disclosure. The Contractor shall notify COMMERCE within five (5) working 
days of any unauthorized use or disclosure of any confidential information, and shall take necessary 
steps to mitigate the harmful effects of such use or disclosure.   

6. COPYRIGHT 

Unless otherwise provided, all Materials produced under this Contract shall be considered "works for 
hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act and shall be owned by COMMERCE. COMMERCE shall be 
considered the author of such Materials. In the event the Materials are not considered “works for hire” 
under the U.S. Copyright laws, the Contractor hereby irrevocably assigns all right, title, and interest in 
all Materials, including all intellectual property rights, moral rights, and rights of publicity to COMMERCE 
effective from the moment of creation of such Materials. 

“Materials” means all items in any format and includes, but is not limited to, data, reports, documents, 
pamphlets, advertisements, books, magazines, surveys, studies, computer programs, films, tapes, 
and/or sound reproductions. “Ownership” includes the right to copyright, patent, register and the ability 
to transfer these rights. 

For Materials that are delivered under the Contract, but that incorporate pre-existing materials not 
produced under the Contract, the Contractor hereby grants to COMMERCE a nonexclusive, royalty-
free, irrevocable license (with rights to sublicense to others) in such Materials to translate, reproduce, 
distribute, prepare derivative works, publicly perform, and publicly display. The Contractor warrants and 
represents that the Contractor has all rights and permissions, including intellectual property rights, 
moral rights and rights of publicity, necessary to grant such a license to COMMERCE. 

The Contractor shall exert all reasonable effort to advise COMMERCE, at the time of delivery of 
Materials furnished under this Contract, of all known or potential invasions of privacy contained therein 
and of any portion of such document which was not produced in the performance of this Contract. The 
Contractor shall provide COMMERCE with prompt written notice of each notice or claim of infringement 
received by the Contractor with respect to any Materials delivered under this Contract. COMMERCE 
shall have the right to modify or remove any restrictive markings placed upon the Materials by the 
Contractor. 

7. DISPUTES 

In the event that a dispute arises under this Agreement, it shall be determined by a Dispute Board in 
the following manner: Each party to this Agreement shall appoint one member to the Dispute Board. 
The members so appointed shall jointly appoint an additional member to the Dispute Board. The 
Dispute Board shall review the facts, Agreement terms and applicable statutes and rules and make a 
determination of the dispute. The Dispute Board shall thereafter decide the dispute with the majority 
prevailing. The determination of the Dispute Board shall be final and binding on the parties hereto. As 
an alternative to this process, either of the parties may request intervention by the Governor, as 
provided by RCW 43.17.330, in which event the Governor's process will control. 
 

8. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 

This Contract shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of Washington, 
and any applicable federal laws, and the venue of any action brought hereunder shall be in the Superior 
Court for Thurston County. 

 

 

 



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 7 

9. INDEMNIFICATION 

Each party shall be solely responsible for the acts of its employees, officers, and agents. 

10. LICENSING, ACCREDITATION AND REGISTRATION 

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal licensing, accreditation and 
registration requirements or standards necessary for the performance of this Contract.  

11. RECAPTURE 

In the event that the Contractor fails to perform this Contract in accordance with state laws, federal 
laws, and/or the provisions of this Contract, COMMERCE reserves the right to recapture funds in an 
amount to compensate COMMERCE for the noncompliance in addition to any other remedies available 
at law or in equity.  

Repayment by the Contractor of funds under this recapture provision shall occur within the time period 
specified by COMMERCE. In the alternative, COMMERCE may recapture such funds from payments 
due under this Contract. 

12. RECORDS MAINTENANCE 

The Contractor shall maintain books, records, documents, data and other evidence relating to this 
contract and performance of the services described herein, including but not limited to accounting 
procedures and practices that sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature 
expended in the performance of this contract.   
 
The Contractor shall maintain records that identify, in its accounts, all federal awards received and 
expended and the federal programs under which they were received, by Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance (CFDA) title and number, award number and year, name of the federal agency, and name 
of the pass-through entity. 
 
The Contractor shall retain such records for a period of six (6) years following the date of final payment. 
At no additional cost, these records, including materials generated under the contract, shall be subject 
at all reasonable times to inspection, review or audit by COMMERCE, personnel duly authorized by 
COMMERCE, the Office of the State Auditor, and federal and state officials so authorized by law, 
regulation or agreement. 

If any litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the six (6) year period, the records shall 
be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved. 

13. SAVINGS 

In the event funding from state, federal, or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way 
after the effective date of this Contract and prior to normal completion, COMMERCE may suspend or 
terminate the Contract under the "Termination for Convenience" clause, without the ten calendar day 
notice requirement. In lieu of termination, the Contract may be amended to reflect the new funding 
limitations and conditions.  

14. SEVERABILITY 

The provisions of this contract are intended to be severable. If any term or provision is illegal or invalid 
for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of 
the contract. 

15. SUBCONTRACTING 

The Contractor may only subcontract work contemplated under this Contract if it obtains the prior written 
approval of COMMERCE. 

If COMMERCE approves subcontracting, the Contractor shall maintain written procedures related to 
subcontracting, as well as copies of all subcontracts and records related to subcontracts. For cause, 
COMMERCE in writing may: (a) require the Contractor to amend its subcontracting procedures as they 



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 8 

relate to this Contract; (b) prohibit the Contractor from subcontracting with a particular person or entity; 
or (c) require the Contractor to rescind or amend a subcontract. 

Every subcontract shall bind the Subcontractor to follow all applicable terms of this Contract. Contractor 
shall incorporate 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F audit requirements into all subcontracts.  The Contractor 
is responsible to COMMERCE if the Subcontractor fails to comply with any applicable term or condition 
of this Contract. The Contractor shall appropriately monitor the activities of the Subcontractor to assure 
fiscal conditions of this Contract. In no event shall the existence of a subcontract operate to release or 
reduce the liability of the Contractor to COMMERCE for any breach in the performance of the 
Contractor’s duties. 

Every subcontract shall include a term that COMMERCE and the State of Washington are not liable for 
claims or damages arising from a Subcontractor’s performance of the subcontract. 

16. SURVIVAL 

The terms, conditions, and warranties contained in this Contract that by their sense and context are 
intended to survive the completion of the performance, cancellation or termination of this Contract shall 
so survive.  

17. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 

In the event COMMERCE determines the Contractor has failed to comply with the conditions of this 
contract in a timely manner, COMMERCE has the right to suspend or terminate this contract. Before 
suspending or terminating the contract, COMMERCE shall notify the Contractor in writing of the need 
to take corrective action. If corrective action is not taken within 30 calendar days, the contract may be 
terminated or suspended.  

In the event of termination or suspension, the Contractor shall be liable for damages as authorized by 
law including, but not limited to, any cost difference between the original contract and the replacement 
or cover contract and all administrative costs directly related to the replacement contract, e.g., cost of 
the competitive bidding, mailing, advertising and staff time.   

COMMERCE reserves the right to suspend all or part of the contract, withhold further payments, or 
prohibit the Contractor from incurring additional obligations of funds during investigation of the alleged 
compliance breach and pending corrective action by the Contractor or a decision by COMMERCE to 
terminate the contract. A termination shall be deemed a “Termination for Convenience” if it is 
determined that the Contractor: (1) was not in default; or (2) failure to perform was outside of his or her 
control, fault or negligence.   

The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided in this contract are not exclusive and are in addition 
to any other rights and remedies provided by law.   

18. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 

Except as otherwise provided in this Contract, COMMERCE may, by ten (10) business days written 
notice, beginning on the second day after the mailing, terminate this Contract, in whole or in part. If this 
Contract is so terminated, COMMERCE shall be liable only for payment required under the terms of 
this Contract for services rendered or goods delivered prior to the effective date of termination.  

19. TERMINATION PROCEDURES 

Upon termination of this contract, COMMERCE, in addition to any other rights provided in this contract, 
may require the Contractor to deliver to COMMERCE any property specifically produced or acquired 
for the performance of such part of this contract as has been terminated. The provisions of the 
"Treatment of Assets" clause shall apply in such property transfer. 

COMMERCE shall pay to the Contractor the agreed upon price, if separately stated, for completed 
work and services accepted by COMMERCE, and the amount agreed upon by the Contractor and 
COMMERCE for (i) completed work and services for which no separate price is stated, (ii) partially 
completed work and services, (iii) other property or services that are accepted by COMMERCE, and 
(iv) the protection and preservation of property, unless the termination is for default, in which case the 
Authorized Representative shall determine the extent of the liability of COMMERCE. Failure to agree 



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 9 

with such determination shall be a dispute within the meaning of the "Disputes" clause of this contract.  
COMMERCE may withhold from any amounts due the Contractor such sum as the Authorized 
Representative determines to be necessary to protect COMMERCE against potential loss or liability. 

The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided in this section shall not be exclusive and are in 
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract. 

After receipt of a notice of termination, and except as otherwise directed by the Authorized 
Representative, the Contractor shall: 

A. Stop work under the contract on the date, and to the extent specified, in the notice; 

B. Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, services, or facilities except as may be 
necessary for completion of such portion of the work under the contract that is not terminated; 

C. Assign to COMMERCE, in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by the Authorized 
Representative, all of the rights, title, and interest of the Contractor under the orders and 
subcontracts so terminated, in which case COMMERCE has the right, at its discretion, to settle or 
pay any or all claims arising out of the termination of such orders and subcontracts; 

D. Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of orders and 
subcontracts, with the approval or ratification of the Authorized Representative to the extent the 
Authorized Representative may require, which approval or ratification shall be final for all the 
purposes of this clause; 

E. Transfer title to COMMERCE and deliver in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by 
the Authorized Representative any property which, if the contract had been completed, would have 
been required to be furnished to COMMERCE; 

F. Complete performance of such part of the work as shall not have been terminated by the Authorized 
Representative; and 

G. Take such action as may be necessary, or as the Authorized Representative may direct, for the 
protection and preservation of the property related to this contract, which is in the possession of 
the Contractor and in which the Authorized Representative has or may acquire an interest. 

 

20. WAIVER 

Waiver of any default or breach shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent default or breach. 
Any waiver shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Contract unless stated to be 
such in writing and signed by Authorized Representative of COMMERCE. 

 



Attachment A 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 10 

 

Scope of Work 

This funding is made available under section 601(a) of the Social Security Act, as added by section 5001 
of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) and Section V and VI of the 
CARES Act, for costs incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the Coronavirus Disease 
2019 (COVID-19). Under the CARES Act, the Coronavirus Relief Fund may be used to cover costs that: 
 

1. Are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the 
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID–19); AND 
 

2. Are not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 (the date 
of enactment of the CARES Act) for the State or government. 

 
These funds may be used to reimburse for expenditures incurred during the period of March 1, 2020 thru 
Oct. 31, 2020. Please note: In order to ensure all funds have been fully utilized prior to the US 
Treasury’s December 30, 2020 end date, the State of Washington must closeout contracts by October 
31, 2020. All final requests for reimbursement must be received no later than November 15, 2020. 
 
Expenditures must be used for necessary actions taken to respond to the public health emergency. These 
may include expenditures incurred to allow the local government to respond directly to the emergency, such 
as by addressing medical or public health needs, as well as expenditures incurred to respond to second-
order effects of the emergency, such as by providing economic support to those suffering from employment 
or business interruptions due to COVID-19-related business closures. 
 
Funds may not be used to fill shortfalls in government revenue to cover expenditures that would not 
otherwise qualify under the statute. Although a broad range of uses is allowed, revenue replacement is not 
a permissible use of Fund payments.  
 
Payments may be used only to cover costs not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of 
March 27, 2020. A cost meets this requirement if either:  
 

1. The cost cannot lawfully be funded using a line item, allotment, or allocation within that budget; OR 
 

2. The cost is for a substantially different use from any expected use of funds in such a line item, 
allotment, or allocation. 

 
The “most recently approved” budget is the enacted budget for the relevant fiscal period for the particular 
government. A cost is not considered to have been accounted for in a budget merely because it could be 
met using a budgetary stabilization fund, rainy day fund, or similar reserve account. 
 
Allowable expenditures include, but are not limited to: 
 

1. Medical expenses such as: 
a. COVID-19-related expenses of public hospitals, clinics, and similar facilities. 
b. Expenses of establishing temporary public medical facilities and other measures to increase 

COVID-19 treatment capacity, including related construction costs. 
c. Costs of providing COVID-19 testing, including serological testing. 
d. Emergency medical response expenses, including emergency medical transportation, related 

to COVID-19. 
e. Expenses for establishing and operating public telemedicine capabilities for COVID-19-related 

treatment. 
 

2. Public health expenses such as: 



Attachment A 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 11 

 

a. Expenses for communication and enforcement by State, territorial, local, and Tribal 
governments of public health orders related to COVID-19. 

b. Expenses for acquisition and distribution of medical and protective supplies, including 
sanitizing products and personal protective equipment, for medical personnel, police officers, 
social workers, child protection services, and child welfare officers, direct service providers for 
older adults and individuals with disabilities in community settings, and other public health or 
safety workers in connection with the COVID-19 public health emergency. 

c. Expenses for disinfection of public areas and other facilities, e.g., nursing homes, in response 
to the COVID-19 public health emergency. 

d. Expenses for technical assistance to local authorities or other entities on mitigation of COVID-
19-related threats to public health and safety. 

e. Expenses for public safety measures undertaken in response to COVID-19. 
f. Expenses for quarantining individuals. 

 
3. Payroll expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services, and similar 

employees whose services are substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-
19 public health emergency.  
 

4. Expenses of actions to facilitate compliance with COVID-19-related public health measures, such 
as: 
a. Expenses for food delivery to residents, including, for example, senior citizens and other 

vulnerable populations, to enable compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 
b. Expenses to facilitate distance learning, including technological improvements, in connection 

with school closings to enable compliance with COVID-19 precautions. 
c. Expenses to improve telework capabilities for public employees to enable compliance with 

COVID-19 public health precautions. 
d. Expenses of providing paid sick and paid family and medical leave to public employees to 

enable compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 
e. COVID-19-related expenses of maintaining state prisons and county jails, including as relates 

to sanitation and improvement of social distancing measures, to enable compliance with 
COVID-19 public health precautions. 

f. Expenses for care for homeless populations provided to mitigate COVID-19 effects and enable 
compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 
 

5. Expenses associated with the provision of economic support in connection with the COVID-19 
public health emergency, such as: 
a. Expenditures related to the provision of grants to small businesses to reimburse the costs of 

business interruption caused by required closures. 
b. Expenditures related to a State, territorial, local, or Tribal government payroll support program. 
c. Unemployment insurance costs related to the COVID-19 public health emergency if such costs 

will not be reimbursed by the federal government pursuant to the CARES Act or otherwise. 
 

6. Any other COVID-19-related expenses reasonably necessary to the function of government that 
satisfy the Fund’s eligibility criteria. 

 



Attachment B 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 12 
 

Budget & Invoicing 

The Contractor shall determine the appropriate budget and use of funds within the following 6 budget 
categories and their sub-categories: 
 

1. Medical 
2. Public Health 
3. Payroll 
4. Actions to Comply with Public Health Measures 
5. Economic Support 
6. Other Covid-19 Expenses 

 
The Contractor shall submit invoice reimbursement requests to the Commerce Representative using the 
Commerce Contract Management System’s (CMS) Online A-19 Portal. Each reimbursement request must 
include:  

1. A-19 Certification form – An authorized party of the local government will certify each invoice (A19) 
submitted for reimbursement and attest that all incurred expenditures meet the US Treasury 
Department’s guidance: https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-
Guidance-for-State-Territorial-Local-and-Tribal-Governments.pdf  

2. A-19 Activity Report  
3. A detailed breakdown of the expenditures incurred within each applicable budget sub-category on 

the A-19 Activity Report.  
 
The A-19 Certification and Activity Report templates will be provided with the executed contract. The 
documents are included in Attachment C and Attachment D for reference. 
 
Receipts and proof of payment for costs incurred do not need to be submitted with A-19s. All contractors 
are required to maintain accounting records in accordance with state and federal laws. Records must be 
sufficient to demonstrate the funds have been used in accordance with section 601(d) of the Social Security 
Act. Commerce reserves the right to audit any costs submitted for reimbursement. The Contractor shall 
comply with Commerce A-19 audits and provide the appropriate records upon request.

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Guidance-for-State-Territorial-Local-and-Tribal-Governments.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Guidance-for-State-Territorial-Local-and-Tribal-Governments.pdf


Attachment C 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 13 
 

 

  



Attachment C 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 14 
 

 



Attachment D 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 15 
 

 



Attachment D 

State of Washington Interagency Agreement Version 072019 
Department of Commerce Page 16 
 

 


	1 Agenda_20200707
	2 2020 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers_20200707
	4 Draft Minutes_20200121
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL PRESENT
	COUNCIL REPORTS
	One or more councilmembers attended the following meetings and/or events:
	 Housing & Behavioral Health Advisory Board
	 Criminal Justice Advisory Board
	 Chamber 97th Anniversary & Annual Awards Gala
	 Mason Transit Authority Board
	 Staff briefings
	 Communications with constituents
	Councilmember Schmit requested concurrence from City Council to direct staff to move forward with coordinating a Joint City Council/Tribal Council Board Meeting with the Squaxin Island Tribe of Kamilche Washington.
	City Council concurred for staff to move forward with coordinating the meeting.
	ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING

	5 Draft Minutes_20200303
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL PRESENT
	COUNCIL REPORTS
	One or more councilmembers attended the following meetings and/or events:
	 Governor’s Committee on Disability and Employment
	 County Informational Briefing – Corona Virus
	 Community Panel Interviews - City of Shelton Public Works Director
	 Shelton School District Board Meeting
	 Shelton’s Sport Hall of Fame
	 City Staff Briefings
	 Communications with constituents
	ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING

	5a ROC Northwest Selling Seminar v2
	ROC Northwest
	Agenda
	Who Are We
	How We Do This
	12345
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Q&A
	Victoria O’Banion

	5b 2020 Code Updates Staff Report
	STAFF REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

	6 SRO Ordinance No 1949-0220 Briefing
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	7 SRO Ordinance No. 1949-0220 final
	8 Lease Agreement_PANZA_20190522
	9 Briefing_Master Fee Schedule_20200707
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	10 Master Fee Schedule Resolution No1160-0620
	11 2020 Fee Schedule_Ex A update by jn 20200707
	12 Briefing - Surplus Vehicles
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	13 Resolution No. 1161-0620 Surplus of Vehicles-Police  Fire
	14 Vehicle Info - PD
	15 Vehicle Info - Fire
	16 Briefing_Basin 3 Final Acceptance
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	17 Resolution 1162-0620_Basin 3 Final Acceptance
	18 PowerPoint_Basin 3 Final Acceptance
	Slide Number 1
	Goal: To reduce Inflow and Infiltration (I&I) in the Basin 3 Sewer area
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Project Area						Paving
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	This Project Completed:
	Questions?

	19 Briefing_Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design Contract Amendment No. 1
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	20 Resolution 1163-0620_Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design Contract Amend. No. 1
	21 Contract Amend 1 with Track Changes
	Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is hereby amended to read:
	Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby amended to read:
	Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read:

	22 Contract Amend 1, Clean with Exhibits
	Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is hereby amended to read:
	Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby amended to read:
	Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read:

	23 ILA_Squaxin Goldsborough Creek
	24 Recl Water Tank Figure
	25 Briefing_Sewer Comp Plan Contract Amendment No. 1
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	26 Resolution 1164-0620_Sewer Comp Plan Contract Amend. No. 1
	27 Contract Amend 1 with Track Changes
	Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is hereby amended to read:
	Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby amended to read:
	Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read:

	28 Contract Amend 1, Clean with Exhibits
	Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is hereby amended to read:
	Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby amended to read:
	Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read:

	29 ILA_Squaxin Goldsborough Creek
	30 NorthDiversionArea
	31 Briefing_2020 6-Yr TIP
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	32 2020 TIP Resolution 1159-0620
	33 2020 TIP Resolution Attachment 2021-2026
	34 Informational City Map
	35 2020 TIP Public Hearing Notice
	NOTICE OF
	PUBLIC HEARING

	36 2020 TIP Definition of Information Codes
	00 – No Classification

	37 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 6-16-20 presentation
	six-year transportation improvement program
	WHY DO WE NEED ONE? 
	PROJECTS
	WEST RAILROAD AVENUE LOOKING EAST
	WEST RAILROAD AVENUE AND PACIFIC COURT BUS PULLOUT
	WEST RAILROAD AVENUE CITY LIMITS TO 12TH STREET
	WEST RAILROAD AVENUE CITY LIMITS TO 12TH STREET
	WEST RAILROAD AVENUE LOOKING EAST AT 10TH STREET
	WEST RAILROAD AVENUE 8TH TO 12TH STREET
	WEST RAILROAD AVENUE AT 8TH TO 12TH STREET
	Slide Number 11
	NEXT STEPS 
	Questions?

	38 Briefing_MTA Parking Lot Change Order
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	39 Resolution 1165-0620_MTA Change Order No. 1
	40 Change Order 1
	41 ILA MTA Stormwater Grant
	42 Briefing_Commerce Agreement
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	43 Contract_20-6541C-318



